
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




QB\71970728.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-17-2022 
 
INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $400,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 


BONDS FOR PARKS AND PUBLIC GROUNDS PROJECTS 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $400,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of parks and public grounds projects, consisting of pedestrian bridge replacement, construction 
of trails and other park improvements. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 
 








QB\71970753.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-18-2022 
 
INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $225,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 


BONDS FOR RIVER PARK PROJECT 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $225,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of park and public grounds projects, consisting of the River Park project. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 
 








QB\71970801.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-19-2022 
 
INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $700,000 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 


PROJECTS IN TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 8 
 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 
Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $700,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of providing financial assistance to community development projects under Section 66.1105, 
Wisconsin Statutes, by paying project costs included in the project plan for Tax Incremental 
District No. 8. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 








QB\71970584.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-20-2022 
 
 


RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE TO ELECTORS 
RELATING TO BOND ISSUES 


 
WHEREAS, initial resolutions authorizing general obligation bonds have been adopted 


by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") and it is 
now necessary that said initial resolutions be published to afford notice to the residents of the 
City of their adoption; 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Clerk shall, within 15 days, 


publish a notice to the electors in substantially the form attached hereto in the official City 
newspaper as a class 1 notice under ch. 985, Wis. Stats. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 
 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 
 


 
(SEAL) 


 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to revised the Fund Balance Policy 


 
Committee 
A i  


 
Finance Committee approved 7-0  on January 11, 2022 
 Financial Impact:   None 


 
File Number: R-26-2022


 
Date Introduced:   January 25, 2022


WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton adopted a Fund Balance Policy November 13, 2018 


WHEREAS, for the purpose and acceptable range of the City’s various fund balances is an effective 
financial management tool to responsibly utilize the City’s resources, to ensure the continued provision 
of services to residents, and to demonstrate a commitment to long term financial planning.  


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommended revisions to the City of Stoughton Fund Balance 
Policy at the January 11, 2022 meeting. 


WHEREAS, the city wishes to revise a portion of the Fund Balance Policy as outlined in the 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Fund Balance Policy (REVISED JANUARY 25, 2022). 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) is 
hereby directed update the Fund Balance Policy (REVISED JANUARY 25, 2022) 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 







     City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Fund Balance Policy 


(REVISED NOVEMBER JANUARY 1325, 20182022) 
 
A formal written policy governing the purpose and acceptable range of the City’s various fund 
balances is an effective financial management tool to responsibly utilize the City’s resources, to 
ensure the continued provision of services to residents, and to demonstrate a commitment to long 
term financial planning.   
 
Although fund balance primarily focuses on the City’s general fund, financial resources available 
in other funds should also be considered in assessing the adequacy of unrestricted fund balance 
(i.e. the total of the amounts in the various fund balances reported as committed, assigned, and 
unassigned).  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of fund balance in the various 
funds to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated 
expenditures). 
 
Credit rating agencies monitor levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance in a 
government’s general fund to evaluate continued creditworthiness.  Likewise, laws and 
regulations often govern appropriate levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance for 
state and local governments. 
 
Fund balance will be classified into the following five categories depicting the relative strength 
of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used, with the 
highest level of constraint being “nonspendable,” and the lowest being “unassigned.” 


1.   NONSPENDABLE 


Nonspendable fund balance amounts are those not in a spendable form or are required to be 
maintained intact.  Examples are: 


• Assets that will never be converted to cash (i.e. inventories). 
• Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (i.e. long-


term portion of receivables and the nonfinancial assets held for resale such as land). 
• Resources that must be maintained intact based on legal or contractual requirements (i.e. 


principal of an endowment or the capital of a revolving loan fund). 
 


2.  RESTRICTED 


Restricted fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through 
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.  If amounts collected from the long-term 
portion of receivables or from other long-term assets held for sale are also limited externally in 
how they can be spent, they would be shown as restricted instead of nonspendable.  Funds can 
become restricted because of or through: 


 







• Other governments through laws and regulations. 
• Grantors or contributors through agreements. 
• Creditors through debt covenants or other contracts. 
• Enabling legislation that limits how revenue can be used. 


 
3.  COMMITTED 
 
Committed fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its 
highest level of decision-making authority.  Committed fund balance amounts cannot be used for 
any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 
constraint.  (Super Majority Vote) 
 


• The action to commit the resources must be taken by the end of the reporting period. 
• Note that any resources accumulated as “stabilization funds” are sometimes reported as 


“committed.” 
• If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are also limited internally, they would be shown as “committed” 
instead of “nonspendable.” 


 
4.  ASSIGNED 
 
Assigned fund balance amounts are funds the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent 
can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 
delegates the authority.  The City Finance Director is authorized to designate funds as “assigned” 
if the governing body does not express the intent of the fund. 
 


• Assigned fund balance does not have to come from the governing body. 
• Assigned fund balance does not have to have formal action to be considered assigned. 
• Amounts in excess of “nonspendable,” “restricted,” and “committed” fund balance in 


funds other than the general fund automatically will be reported as “assigned” fund 
balance. 


• If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 
assets held for sale are limited in this manner, they would be shown as “assigned” instead 
of “nonspendable.” 


• Amounts in “assigned” fund balance can never cause “unassigned” fund balance to be a 
deficit. 


• This is the category used to reflect the portion of existing fund balance that is planned for 
use to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent year’s budget. 


 
5.  UNASSIGNED  
 
Unassigned fund balance amounts are available for any purpose.  If the general fund has net 
resources in excess of the other four categories that surplus is considered “unassigned.”  


• “Unassigned” fund balances are typically reported only in the general fund.   
 







The order in which unrestricted resources are to be used when any of these amounts are available 
for expenditure will be “committed,” “assigned,” and then “unassigned.” 


GENERAL FUND BALANCE (RESERVE FUND *) 
 
An adequate general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance provides resources to: 


• Maintain sufficient working capital to finance operating expenditures without short-term 
borrowing for cash flow purposes.   


• Temporarily finance unanticipated expenditures or unusual fluctuation in the City’s 
revenue sources. 
 


In determining the acceptable range of general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance, the City considers 
the following: 
 


• Historical stability of the City’s revenues, expenditures, and mill rate. 
• Timing of revenue collections in relation to payments made for operational expenditures. 
• Anticipated growth in the City’s valuation and/or services and programs to be provided to 


City residents. 
• Perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays (e.g. disasters, immediate capital 


needs, state budget cuts) 
• The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds as well as the 


availability of resources in other funds (i.e. deficits in other funds may require that a 
higher level of unrestricted fund balance be maintained in the general fund, just as, the 
availability of resources in other funds may reduce the amount of unrestricted fund 
balance needed in the general fund). 


• Liquidity (i.e. a disparity between when financial resources actually become available to 
make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may require that a higher 
level of resources be maintained). 


• Commitments and assignments (i.e. governments may wish to maintain higher levels of 
unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance 
already committed or assigned by the government for a specific purpose). 


• It is appropriate to exclude from consideration resources that have been committed or 
assigned to some other purpose and focus on unassigned fund balance rather than on 
unrestricted fund balance.   


 
Accordingly, the City seeks to maintain its “unassigned” general fund balance (Reserve Fund *) 
at 20-25% of total general fund annual budgeted expenditures.  In addition, any amount at year 
end in excess of the 25% will be allocated in the following manner: 
  


1.) Funds in excess of the anticipated year end fund balance over the 25% will be 
committed to stabilization of the City’s Maintenance Reserve funds (Equipment 
Maintenance, Building Maintenance and IT Maintenance Funds). 


2.) The remaining balance of the unused excess fund balance (Reserve Fund *) each year 
will be committed to “one-time” equipment purchases, projects, or expenses as 
recommended by the Director of Finance and approved by the Common Council. 







The Finance Committee will review the Reserve Fund * annually following the City’s Annual 
Audit to recommend allocations of excess Reserve Fund * to the Common Council. 
 
A 2/3 vote of the entire Common Council is required to allocate fund balance (Reserve Fund *). 
 
To maintain the City’s general fund balance (Reserve fund *), the City shall: 
 


• Strive to eliminate the budgeted use of fund balance.   
• Allocate any operational surplus at the end of the fiscal year as detailed above, with 


Council consideration given to requested carry over amounts, yet ensuring this policy’s 
requirements are maintained. 


• Caution shall be exercised to ensure the utilization of fund balance (Reserve Fund *) does 
not result in a spike in the required subsequent year tax levy. 


• Annually where the “unassigned” fund balance (Reserve Fund *) is in excess of the 
recommended amount, the allocation of the excess shall be in accordance with the 
previously stated section of this policy. 


 
In addition, the City Council shall establish a contingency reserve fund balance account in the 
annual operating budget amount on an annual basis to provide for unanticipated expenditures of 
a nonrecurring nature, or to meet unexpected small increases in service delivery costs for any 
budget year.  This account shall be funded at a minimum of 0.175% (.000175) and a maximum 
of 1.0% (.01) of the annual general fund budgeted expenditures for general fund departments 
51100 through 56300.  The City Council may fund the contingency reserve account amount at a 
level higher than the maximum 1.0% of the annual general fund budgeted expenditures if it 
deems the action necessary.  
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to monitor the aforementioned reserve 
balances on a regular basis and report material deviations to the City CouncilFinance Committee. 
The amount to be reserved will be calculated on annual basis following completion of the budget 
and the reserved fund balance amount shall be replenished to the appropriate level at the 
beginning of each budget year. The process of reserving fund balance for contingency purposes 
shall continue until the City’s unassigned balance falls below 20% of the total general fund 
annual budgeted expenditures as defined below. If the City falls below the 20% threshold, the 
City Council will need to determine whether or not it wishes to budget contingency amounts in 
the annual budget until the minimum threshold is once again met.  
 
The annual reserved fund balance amount for contingency spending shall be recorded to account 
100-00000-34032 – Reserved – Contingency Spending. Annual contingency expenditures 
incurred shall be recorded to account 100-59200-50930.  
 
EXAMPLE: 
 
2022 general fund operating budget for departments 51100 through 56300 totals $9,858,166. 
 
$9,858,166 * .75% = $73,936  
 


Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline







1/1/2023 or any time following that date the $79,936 will be recorded to account 100-00000-
34032. 
 
Expenditures during 2022 will be recorded to account 100-59200-50930. 
 
The Finance Director will determine the balance required during the subsequent years’ budget 
process and true the balance in account 100-00000-34032 as needed.  
 
* -Defined as General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance less Unassigned Fund Balance amounts 
for any Other Governmental Fund not specifically shown as Nonspendable Fund Balance in the 
General Fund. 
 





		16 Fund Balance Policy 1.25.2022

		16a Fund Balance Policy 1.25.22






 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve  the Letter of Engagement and 
to enter into a contract with Truity Partners (formerly known as Baker Tilly Search & Staffing) for 
interim Finance Director consulting services 


Committee Finance Committee   


  Fiscal Impact: Not to Exceed $36,000.   


The budgeted cost for the former Finance Director for 10 weeks of wages and benefits is 
approximately $27831.51.   


Difference between Interim and Budgeted is = $8168.49   
 
File Number: R-22-2022 Date Introduced: January 25, 2022 


 


 
WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Director resigned as of January 12, 2022, and   
 
WHEREAS, interim consulting services to the City of Stoughton for Finance Director assistance is 
recommended by Human Resources/Risk Management Director Gillingham and Mayor Swadley 
and a proposal has been submitted by Truity Partners, and 
 
WHEREAS, Truity Partners provides outsourced services to assist local governments to supplement staff 
contributions while providing increased expertise.  These services include, but are not limited to 
monthly, quarterly or annual accounting assistance, audit work paper preparations, budget 
assistance, accounting staffing and oversite, operation reviews and financial reporting and,  


 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized to approve the Letter of Engagement and to enter into a contract with Truity 
Partners for interim consulting services in the amount not to exceed   


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 







 


1 
 


 
 


 
 
City of Stoughton     
Department of Human Resources & Risk Management              Amy Jo Gillingham  
207 S Forest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589     Director 
www.ci.stoughton.wi.us  
(608) 646-0272  


  
  


January 18, 2022 
 
To: Finance Committee 
 City Council 
 
Re: Interim Finance Director Cost 
 
In 2017 we paid $100-$150 per hour to Baker Tilly for an Interim Finance Director.  The cost per hour 
was dependent on the services rendered.  The city Council approved a not to exceed 
expenditure in the amount of $20,000.   
 
I have contracted with Truity Partners, formerly Baker Tilley Staffing Agency to assist with our 
current Finance Director vacancy. We have estimated 30 hours of work per week. Cost is not 
based on services rendered but is a flat hourly rate based on the candidate.  We are looking at 
$93.00 to $120/hour.  
 
I am requesting approval to contract an Interim Finance Director at a cost not to exceed $36,000 
 
Contract Interim Director 
$120.00 X 30 hours= $3600 per week 
10 weeks estimated $36,000 
Total cost if contracted at $120/HR = $36,000 
 
Former Finance Director  
Hourly wage for 10 weeks-$57.62 hourly- (not including benefits) = $23,048 
10 weeks of Benefits (Health, Dental SSI, WRS, Medicare) =$4783.51 
 
Cost Difference between Finance Director and Interim Director not to exceed: 
 $36,000 Interim Dir.- $23,048 Former Dir. Wage $23048.00– Former Benefits for 10 weeks $4783.51= 
$8168.49 Difference 
 







 


2 
 


 





		17 R-22-2022 RESOLUTION -Consulting Services Finance

		17a Resolution Interim Finance Director 2022






 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the removal of the requirement 
to have an Alder present at all interviews. If possible, an Alder will be present for the hiring of a 
Director level position. 


Committee Personnel Committee recommends approval 3-0 


Fiscal impact: None 


 
 
File Number: R-23-2022 Date Introduced: January 25, 2022 


 


 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee approved the removal of the Alder being present at interviews 
due to the lack of Alders available during the day when interview occur.  The hiring climate has 
changed and is moving quickly.  Having to schedule interviews around an Alders limited schedule is 
slowing our process in a fast moving hiring market, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on January 3, 2022 to review the request to update the 
hiring process and eliminate an Alder being present at interviews except when hiring a Director.  If a 
Director is being hired Human Resources will include an Alder if one is available, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (3-0) to accept the changes noted 
above that affect the hiring process for all positions, now therefore, 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to accept the changes to the hiring process that eliminate an Alder 
being present during interviews, with the exception of Director interviews.  HR will attempt to include 
an Alder at the Director interview.  If no Alder is available, HR is authorized to move forward without 
an Alder being present.   


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 








 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to allow the Human Resources/Risk 
Management Director the ability to update position descriptions that do not affect the grade 
level and reporting structure without additional approval.  Changes that affect the reporting 
structure, compensation and/or grade level must be reviewed and approved by the Human 
Resources Director and the Mayor.   


Committee Personnel Committee recommends approval 3-0 


Fiscal Impact: Unknown 
 
File Number: R-24-2022 Date Introduced: January 25, 2022 


 


 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee approved the recommendation to authorize the Human 
Resources Director to update position descriptions that involve clarification of duties and additional 
duties that are at the same level of responsibility.  If the recommendation for change involves the 
reporting structure or compensation the Human Resources Director and Mayor will review and either 
approve if funds within the existing budget allow or take to Finance and Council.   
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on January 3, 2022 to review the request to authorize 
changes to the position description update process, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (3-0) to accept the recommendation 
now therefore, 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to authorize the HR/ RM Director to approve position description 
updates that do not affect the reporting structure or pay grade and if there are pay grade or 
reporting structure changes the HR/RM Director and the Mayor will review, approve, deny or move 
on to Finance and Council.   


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 







14  


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 
 


Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
(Does Not Include Leadership) 


 


1.0 Purpose 
This policy outlines the steps taken when a position has been approved for recruitment of a 
non-leadership Full-Time or Part-Time position. 
2.0 Policy Details 
The Department Head will review the position description to see if changes are needed. 
IF NO: Go to section one (1) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position 
Description". 
IF YES: Go to section two (2) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with Changes to the Position 
Description". 
If creating a new non-leadership position: Go to section three (3) "Creating a New Non- 
Leadership Position with a New Position Description". 


 
NOTE: Police, Fire (excluding dispatchers), and Library personnel are hired by the Police and 
Fire Commission and Library boards, respectively, in accordance with State Statutes. The 
Personnel Committee and City Council are not involved in the hiring of these positions. The 
Human Resources & Risk Management Department and Department Head works directly with 
the PFC and Library Boards in regards to job posting, candidate selection, interviews, 
background checks, and offer of employment. Human Resources & Risk Management and 
Department Head review the position description and sets the schedule for hiring with the 
Department Head. 


I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description 
The Department Head notifies the Human Resources & Risk Management Director and 
Department Head regarding the opening. 
See Procedure. 


 
II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description 
Leadership contacts the Human Resources & Risk Management Director the opening along 
with the position description changes. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 
reviews there quested changes. 


 
Minor changes to Position Description: wordsmithing, adding duties of the same nature; with 
no grade level changes: the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will approve 
the changes and update the position description. Human Resources & Risk Management will 
start the recruiting process. 







15  


Major changes to Position Description: new duties that will affect the grading of the 
position. Position description will be updated and graded. The Director of Human 
Resources  & Risk Management will meet with the Department Head to discuss pay grade 
and if funding is available. If yes, position description will be presented to the Mayor, 
Personnel and Finance Committees. If approved, the Director of Human Resources & Risk 
Management will present to Council for final approval. 
If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 
See Procedure 


 


Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description 
Request for a new position requires the advice of the Mayor and recommendation from 
the Personnel and Finance Committees to go to Council for final approval. The 
Department Head will work with the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management to 
write the position description Human Resources & Risk Management will complete the 
position grading. The Personnel Committee will be provided with a Position Description 
and recommended grade level. 


If denied by the Personnel or Finance Committee: no action will be taken. 
 


If approved by the Personnel Committee: The Director of Human Resources & Risk 
Management will forward the request to Finance and Council. Council will be provided 
with the resolution, a Position Description and recommended grade level. 


If approved by Council the recruiting process will begin. 
See Procedure. 


3.0 Procedures 
Human Resources & Risk Management will post the position. Recruiting occurs 
concurrently both internally and externally. The posting will take place on the City's Website 
and other advertising locations. An email regarding the open position is also sent to City 
Network employees and a hard copy posted at City Hall. 


 
All applications shall be submitted to Human Resources & Risk Management for review. 
The Director of Human Resources& Risk Management will review the applications. Human 
Resources & Risk Management will work with the Department Head or Designee to 
determine the number of candidates to be interviewed (minimum of one (1) up to five 
(5)). Human Resources & Risk Management Department Director or Designee will select 
the interview panel. If possible, a member of Council will be present during interviews 
(does not include LTE, Part-Time or Seasonal positions). 


 
Following the interview, the panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second 
round of interviews is needed or if they have a recommendation for hire. Second 
interviews are not required. The final candidate is screened by Human Resources & Risk 
Management including: background check, drug/alcohol screening, physicals, 
reference verification if applicable and any other screening deemed necessary for the 







16  


position. Human Resources & Risk Management will contact the final candidate to make 
the contingent offer and send a contingent offer letter of employment to the candidate. 
The offer will include the position title, compensation, status along with the start date and 
time. Orientation of the new employee will be conducted by Human Resources & Risk 
Management. 


 
Candidates who were interviewed, but not selected, may be considered for up to one 
year for like positions. 


 
4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
5.0 Council Approved 


August 24, 2021 





		19 R-24-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to allow the Human ResourcesRisk Management Director the ability to update position descriptions that do not affect the grade level

		19a Hiring Policy - Full  Part-Time Positions REDLINE

		I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description

		II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description

		If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin.

		Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description

		If approved by Council the recruiting process will begin.








 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the elimination of the 
requirement to verify references during the hiring process. This resolution does not eliminate the 
ability to check references, if a need should arise.   The City will continue to complete a 
background check for applicable positions.  Reference check information is limited to dates of 
employment, and if authorized, salary information.  The purpose of this change is to eliminate 
steps in the hiring process that do not add value and slow the process. 


Committee Personnel Committee recommends approval 3-0 


 


Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: R-25-2022 Date Introduced: January 25, 2022 


 


 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee approved the recommendation to authorize the Human 
Resources Department to eliminate the verification of references as part of the standard hiring 
process.  If it is determined that a reference should be verified the step can be added back into the 
process on an as needed basis.  
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on January 3, 2022 to review the request remove the 
reference verification as a requirement, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (3-0) to accept the removal of the 
requirement to contact references now therefore, 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to remove the requirement of checking references.   


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 







17  


Policy Procedure Manual 


Hiring Policy – Leadership 


1.0 Purpose 
This policy and procedure outlines the steps taken when hiring a leadership position. 


2.0 Policy & Procedure 
Hiring process for an existing Leadership Position: The Mayor and/or Director of Human 
Resources & Risk Management shall inform the Personnel Committee that a Leadership 
Position has been or will be vacated. The Mayor will notify the Council of the vacancy. The 
Mayor and the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will review the position 
description and see if changes or updates are necessary. The Personnel Committee will meet 
to discuss the position description and review any potential changes. 


 
If no changes to the Position Description: The Personnel Committee will provide the 
authorization for the Human Resources & Risk Management Director to move forward with the 
hiring process with no changes to the position description. 


 
If changes to the Position Description: The Mayor and Director of Human Resources & Risk 
Management will review the position description and make the requested changes to the 
Position Description to evaluate with the Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee will 
review and may recommend additional changes. Provided the Personnel Committee votes 
to move the changes forward, the position description along with the recommended 
changes, would then be presented to the City Council for approval. 


 
If changes for the position description are approved by the Council: The Director of Human 
Resources & Risk Management will begin the recruiting process once the position description 
changes have been approved by the City Council. 


 
If changes for the position description are not approved by Council: No Action will be taken 
by Director of Human Resources & Risk Management to begin recruiting and will meet with 
the Mayor to discuss Council’s directive, if provided. 


 
Creating a new Leadership position: 
A new Leadership Position requires the advice of the Mayor, Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director and the Personnel Committee and with final approval of the Council. 
The Personnel Committee must be provided with a Job Title, Job Description and 
recommended pay range as provided by the Human Resources & Risk Management Director 
for review. After approval by the Personnel Committee the proposed Job Description and 
pay range must be approved by the Council before the recruiting process begins. 


 
Leadership positions to be filled in the Police or Fire Departments: 
Police and Fire Leadership positions are directed and approved by the Police and Fire 
Commission (PFC). 







18  


The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives direction from the PFC 
regarding the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk Management Director is to 
attend the interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. The creation of the position 
description and approval to move forward with the hiring process must be approved by 
the Personnel Committee and Council prior to recruiting and hiring. Leadership positions to 
be filled at the Library: Library Leadership positions are directed and approved by the 
Library Board. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives direction 
from the Library Board regarding the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director is to attend the interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. 
The creation of the position description and approval to move forward with the hiring 
process must be approved by the Personnel Committee and Council prior to recruiting and 
hiring. Recruiting efforts will be initiated and managed by Human Resources & Risk 
Management Department and in consultation with the Personnel Committee and 
appropriate staff, in conformance to Federal, State and local requirements. 


 
Posting of the positions (new or replacement) internal and external recruiting will occur 
concurrently. The job posting will take place on the City’s Website and other advertising 
options such as websites and/or newspaper(s) and other recruiting venues. 


 
All applications shall be submitted to the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 
for review. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will forward and review 
the applications with the Mayor and designees, if applicable, to determine which 
candidates will be interviewed. 


 
The Interview Panel will consist of the Mayor or designee, a Personnel Committee 
Alderperson, if available, or non-Personnel Committee Alderperson. Other participants may 
include appropriate City employee(s) or non-City employee(s) with the appropriate 
technical/professional background. 
Director of Human Resources & Risk Management or their designee will participate in all 
interviews. The Interview Panel may help develop questions for the prospective 
interviewees and develop benchmark answers for those questions. The Director of Human 
Resources & Risk Management will provide the interview protocol and forms to be used by 
the Interview Panel. 


 
The Interview Panel will interview up to five (5) candidates. Following the interview, the 
panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second round of interviews are 
needed of if they have a recommendation for hire. It is recommended but not required 
that members of Leadership be given the opportunity to participate in the interview process 
through a second round of interviews. Final applicant or applicants for all Leadership 
positions are screened by Human Resources & Risk Management which includes: 
Background check, Drug/Alcohol screening, physicals, reference verification if applicable 
and any other screening of testing that is deemed necessary for the position. 


Human Resources & Risk Management will send a contingent offer of employment to the 
candidate. The offer will include the position title, compensation, status along with the start 







19  


date and time. Orientation of the new employee will be conducted by the Human 
Resources & Risk Management Department. The Orientation will include the required new 
hire paperwork. The Work Rules and Safety Rules will be distributed to the new employee 
and reviewed with the employee by the Leadership member for the Department or the 
immediate Supervisor. Specific safety rules, all work rules and department specific polices 
will be reviewed and discussed with the Supervisor or Department Head. 


 
3.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
4.0 Document History 
5.0 Council Approved 


August 24, 2021 







21  


 
 


 
 
 


1.0 Purpose 


Policy Procedure Manual 
 


Background Checks Policy 


The City of Stoughton believes that hiring qualified individuals to fill positions contributes to 
the overall success of the City. Background checks serve as an important part of the 
selection process. This type of information is collected as a means of promoting a safe and 
productive work environment for current and future City employees. 
Background checks also help the City obtain additional applicant related information that 
helps determine the applicant’s overall employability and future conduct/performance, 
ensuring the protection of the employees, citizens, property and information of the City. 


2.0 Policy Details 
The City may conduct a background check on prospective employees and/or 
candidates with a contingent offer of employment. A background check provides the 
City an opportunity to obtain information from other sources about the candidate’s work 
history, determine to what extent the work experience of the candidate is related to City 
needs and to identify job related concerns. 


 
The City follows this procedure for volunteers or applicants for volunteer positions with the 
City (for example volunteers serving vulnerable populations, handling financial 
transactions, or representing the City with the general public). 


 
A. Employment Eligibility 
The City is required by law to check identity and authorization for employment in the United 
States. The Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services (BCIS) provides the I-9 form for 
the City to utilize in documenting verification of employment eligibility. This must be verified 
by the examination of acceptable documents presented by the candidate for 
employment and completion of the I-9 form within three (3) business days of hire. The I-9 
form will be completed by the Human Resources & Risk Management Department. 


 
B. Verification of Submitted Application Information 
The City may seek confirmation of background data (such as dates of employment, salary, 
position and duties, education and professional licenses) and competency with respect to 
certain job-related skills (such as attendance, dependability, judgment and initiative). 
Background checks of all regular and volunteer City positions except minors. 


 
C. Past Employer Checks 
The City may contact a candidate’s previous employer(s). The candidate’s current 
employer(s) will only be contacted after agreement from the candidate. The Human







22  


Resources & Risk Management Director or their Designee will contact the candidate’s 
immediate Supervisor(s).  


 
D. Criminal Records 
Applicants are required to respond to questions regarding convictions and pending criminal 
charges, if applicable, on the City’s employment application. 
Pending criminal charges and conviction history information may not be used against 
candidates for employment, unless the conviction or pending criminal charge 
substantially relates to the circumstances of the particular job. In reviewing applicable 
convictions and pending charges, the City will consider the relationship between the 
conviction and the position, the nature of the conviction, the number of convictions, 
rehabilitation efforts and the applicant’s fitness for the job. 


 
E. National Criminal Records & Caregiver Background Checks for Applicants, 
Employees and Volunteers 
Police and Dispatch applicants, applicants or volunteers serving vulnerable populations, 
who work with children or who qualify as a “caregiver” under Wisconsin law (Chapter 
HFS 12 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code) may have a national criminal records 
check screening completed, including caregiver check through the Wisconsin 
Department of Health and Family Services (as required). The purpose of this criminal 
history check will be to determine if a prospective or current employee or volunteer has 
been convicted for a crime that affects their ability to provide for the safety and well-
being of children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities. Fingerprints may be obtained 
by going to the City’s Police Department. 
A review of driving records is required for all City positions that involve operation of a motor 
vehicle. Prior to an offer of employment or promotion to a position that requires driving, the 
City may review the records indicated below against a specific set of screening criteria to 
evaluate whether the record is acceptable, questionable or unacceptable. In addition, 
the screening may also take into account how much experience is needed, and what 
types of vehicles and/or equipment the candidate used in the past. 


 
The City will perform the following driving record reviews: 
1. Driver License verification: A candidate’s license will be verified to ensure that it has 
not expired, and to confirm the listed operating classes (A, B, C, D, M), endorsements (T, P, 
N, H, X) and any restrictions (i.e. air brakes, corrective lenses, etc.) 


 
2. Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) review: This details the accident and traffic history of a 
candidate over the previous three-year period, and will be compared against the 
following MVR qualification guidelines to determine if the driving record is acceptable. 


a. Minimum Qualification Guidelines: The following are minimum driver qualification 
guidelines for consideration by the City: 


1. Must have a valid Driver’s License at time of appointment and be 
maintained during their incumbency. 







23  


2. Meet the minimum posted licensing requirements for the position. 
3. Condition of Employment: It is a condition of employment for City 


employees who operate motor vehicles or equipment to have an 
acceptable driving record. Based on the Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) 
review, a candidate will not be considered for employment if any of 
the following have occurred during the last three-year period: 


4. Conviction of a felony related to the job position. 
5. Conviction for the sale, handling or use of drugs. 
6. Cancellation, declination or non-renewal of vehicle insurance. 
7. Conviction of a drug or alcohol offense while driving. 


 
3. Suspension or revocation of Driver’s License. The following violations (defined 
below) may impact whether a candidate obtains employment with the City: 


1. One or more Type A violations in the preceding three-year period. 
2. Two or more Type B violations in the preceding three-year period. 
3. Three or more Type C violations in the preceding three-year period. 
4. One Type B violation and two Type C violations in the preceding three-year period. 


a. Type A Violations: Includes, but not limited to: driving with a revoked or 
suspended license, DWI, reckless driving, fleeing or evading police, resisting 
arrest, hit and run, failure to report an accident, involuntary manslaughter or 
negligent homicide using a motor vehicle, operating a motor vehicle for the 
commission of a felony, excessive speeding (16 mph above the posted speed 
limit), and drag racing. 


b. Type B Violations: All vehicle accidents, regardless of fault. 
c. Type C Violations: Includes all moving violations not classified as Type A or B: 


speeding, improper lane change, failure to yield, failure to obey a traffic 
signal or sign, and careless driving. 


d. Type D Violations: Includes all non-moving violations: illegal parking and vehicle 
defects. CDL Operators will be requested to provide a ten-year employment 
history as part of the application process (per Federal DOT standard 49 CFR), 
and must comply with the City Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy and 
consent to testing as defined by the DOT and City policy. 


 
G. Background Investigations 


A background investigation may be conducted for select City positions, due to the 
sensitive nature or type of work performed, if required by the position description. 
Generally, a background investigation attempts to gather information determined to be 
relevant to a candidate’s performance of a job. For example, the Law Enforcement 
Standards Board describes the background investigation as a search of information 
relevant to the issue of whether the candidate possesses the following five (5) 
Performance-Related Behavioral Characteristics: dependability, honesty, judgment, social 
stability, and assertiveness. The background investigation goes beyond contacting 
individuals identified in a candidate’s application as “references”, and may include any 
one of the following: personal data, residence information, family relationships, personal 
references, education, military service, employment, financial history, civil/criminal 







24  


litigation history, motor vehicle and driver’s license history. The following City positions 
require background investigations as part of the selection process: Police and 
Department Heads. Psychological evaluations are required for Police and Dispatch. 


 
H. Credit Checks 
City positions that have responsibility for initiating or affecting financial transactions may 
be required to submit to a credit check. These responsibilities may include, but are not 
limited to: collecting or handling cash or checks, writing checks or approving them, access 
to a direct money stream or being a fiduciary to the City. 
For any position where a consumer or credit check is required, the check will be 
conducted by a consumer reporting agency, and will be held in compliance with all 
Federal and State statutes and collected consistent with the guidelines set forth by the Fair 
Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). 


1. Prior to requesting the FCRA report, the City will notify the candidate or 
employee with a conspicuous written disclosure (in a document separate from 
the application) indicating a report will be requested and obtain their written 
authorization. 


2. The City will provide certification to the consumer reporting agency that 
compliance with the FCRA and all other applicable equal employment 
opportunity laws and regulations will be adhered to. 


3. Prior to taking an adverse action based on the report, a pre-adverse action 
disclosure notice will be provided to the candidate or employee that includes a 
copy of the individual’s consumer report and a copy of the Federal Trade 
Commission’s (FTC) document “A Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair Credit 
Reporting Act”, which includes their ability to dispute inaccurate information. 
Once notified, the candidate or employee will be given the opportunity to 
correct or explain any information included in the report before the City takes 
the adverse action. 


4. The City will provide written notification to the candidate or employee of the 
following: (1) the adverse action taken; (2) the name, address and telephone 
number of the consumer reporting agency that furnished the consumer report; 
(3) a statement that the consumer reporting agency that supplied the report did 
not make the decision to take the adverse action and cannot give specific 
reasons for it; (4) a notice of the individual’s right to dispute the accuracy or 
completeness of any information the agency furnished, and their right to an 
additional free consumer report from the agency upon request within 60 days. 


 
I. Record-keeping 
Information attained as part of the background checks process will be used as part of the 
employment process and will be kept strictly confidential. The Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director will store and maintain the information obtained as part of a 
background check. Any City employee who has authority to conduct a background 
check should forward all pertinent documentation to the Human Resources & Risk 
Management Director. The Human Resources & Risk Management Director and the Human 







25  


Resources & Risk Management Generalist will only have access to this information, which will 
be kept separate from the employee’s personnel file. 


 
J. Legal Restrictions 
Background checks must be conducted in compliance with anti-discrimination laws. 
Therefore, inquiry about an applicant’s race, color, sex (including pregnancy and sexual 
orientation), national origin, age, disability, religious observation or practice, ancestry, creed, 
handicap, marital status, arrest record, conviction record, sexual orientation, membership in 
the National Guard, State defense force on any reserve component of the military force of 
the United States or this State, use or nonuse of lawful products off the employer’s premises 
during non-working hours, unfair honesty testing, genetic testing or any other protected class 
under Federal, State or local law is expressly prohibited. 
The background check procedure should not question reference givers in a manner 
which elicits information specifying the candidate’s membership in a protected class. The 
only information that can be collected is that pertaining to the quality and quantity of 
work performed by the applicant, the applicant’s education, and other issues that impact 
the workplace. 
The City will make inquiries regarding criminal records during the pre-employment or 
contingent offer State. However, in keeping with the Wisconsin Fair Employment Act, this 
information will not be used as a basis for denying employment, unless the circumstances of 
the conviction or pending criminal charge (arrest) substantially relate to the circumstances 
of the particular job applied for. 


 
K. Providing References 
Wisconsin law allows references to be given to prospective employers in good faith and 
protects employers from civil liability for reference provided in good faith. Per Wisconsin 
State Statute 985- 487(2) “An employer who, on the request of an employee or a 
prospective employer of the employee, provides a reference to that prospective employer 
is presumed to be acting in good faith and, unless lack of good faith is shown by clear and 
convincing evidence, is immune from all civil liability that may result from providing that 
reference. The presumption of good faith under this subsection may be rebutted only upon 
a showing by clear and convincing evidence that the employer knowingly provided false 
information in the reference, that the employer made the reference maliciously or that the 
employer made the reference in violation of ss. 111.322”. All inquiries regarding a current or 
former City employee must be referred to the Human Resources & Risk Management 
Director, including telephone and written requests. 
Information is not provided over the telephone. The Human Resources & Risk Management 
Department must have a signed release from the employee. Reference letters are 
prohibited from being issued on any current or former City employee, without prior 
permission from the Human Resources & Risk Management Director. 


 
No other data or information regarding any current or former City employee, or their 
employment with the City will be furnished unless the employee authorizes the City to 
furnish this information in writing that also releases the City from liability in connection with 
furnishing of this information or the City is required by law to furnish the information. 







26  


3.0 Procedures 
Guidelines for Conducting Reference Checks 
Reference checks are conducted by the Human Resources & Risk Management 
Department. Human Resources & Risk Management will verify that the City application box 
that gives authorization for the City to contact references is checked. The following 
guidelines should be utilized to help prepare for the reference check. 


 
1. Following the interview, it will be determined for which candidate(s) the Human 


Resources &Risk Management Department is to verify references. 
2. Contact the former employer(s) first. In each contact, request the name of others who 


worked with the candidate and know their performance. 
3. Contact may also be made with anyone who may have knowledge about the 


candidate, or who may direct the City to someone else. 
4. Complete the reference check form. 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Council Approved 
August 24, 2021 







Policy Procedure Manual 


Limited Part-Time or Seasonal Hiring Policy 
(600-1199 hours annually) 


1.0 Purpose 
This policy outlines the limited Part-Time and seasonal hiring process. 


2.0 Policy Details 
1. Human Resources & Risk Management receives the Request for Personnel Form from the 


Department Head. 
2. Human Resources & Risk Management works with the Department Head to determine 


recruiting methods including posting on the City’s Website. Recruiting may include 
other recruiting websites, association websites, newspapers etc. 


3. All interested parties must complete and submit an application form to Human 
Resources & Risk Management by the application deadline to be considered. 


4. Applications will be screened by Human Resources & Risk Management to 
determine if the candidate meets the minimum requirements. Testing may be 
used. 


5. Review of application form with emphasis on: 
 


a) Past work experience 
b) Past experience directly relating to the job 
c) Education 
d) Attained job related skills 
e) Certifications or licenses 


 
6. Depending on the responsibility of the position reference checks may be 


completed. 
7. Department Head and Human Resources & Risk Management will interview the top 


final candidates. The Interview panel is optional. 
8. Provide the candidate with following information pertaining to job: 


 
a) Duration of employment 
b) Wages 
c) Duties and Responsibilities 


 
9. Human Resources & Risk Management will offer the position(s) to individual(s) selected. 
10. Human Resources & Risk Management will send notice to individuals not selected. 
11. Orientation and Training - Completed by Human Resources & Risk Management 


and the department for which they will be working. 
3.0 Procedures 
4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
5.0 Council Approved 


August 24, 2021           20 
 







14  


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 
 


Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
(Does Not Include Leadership) 


 


1.0 Purpose 
This policy outlines the steps taken when a position has been approved for recruitment of a 
non-leadership Full-Time or Part-Time position. 
2.0 Policy Details 
The Department Head will review the position description to see if changes are needed. 
IF NO: Go to section one (1) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position 
Description". 
IF YES: Go to section two (2) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with Changes to the Position 
Description". 
If creating a new non-leadership position: Go to section three (3) "Creating a New Non- 
Leadership Position with a New Position Description". 


 
NOTE: Police, Fire (excluding dispatchers), and Library personnel are hired by the Police and 
Fire Commission and Library boards, respectively, in accordance with State Statutes. The 
Personnel Committee and City Council are not involved in the hiring of these positions. The 
Human Resources & Risk Management Department and Department Head works directly with 
the PFC and Library Boards in regards to job posting, candidate selection, interviews, 
background checks, and offer of employment. Human Resources & Risk Management and 
Department Head review the position description and sets the schedule for hiring with the 
Department Head. 


I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description 
The Department Head notifies the Human Resources & Risk Management Director and 
Department Head regarding the opening. 
See Procedure. 


 
II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description 
Leadership contacts the Human Resources & Risk Management Director the opening along 
with the position description changes. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management 
reviews there quested changes. 


 
Minor changes to Position Description: wordsmithing, adding duties of the same nature; with 
no grade level changes: the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will approve 
the changes and update the position description. Human Resources & Risk Management will 
start the recruiting process. 







15  


Major changes to Position Description: new duties that will affect the grading of the 
position. Position description will be updated and graded. The Director of Human 
Resources  & Risk Management will meet with the Department Head to discuss pay grade 
and if funding is available. If yes, position description will be presented to the Mayor, 
Personnel and Finance Committees. If approved, the Director of Human Resources & Risk 
Management will present to Council for final approval. 
If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 
See Procedure 


 


Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description 
Request for a new position requires the advice of the Mayor and recommendation from 
the Personnel and Finance Committees to go to Council for final approval. The 
Department Head will work with the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management to 
write the position description Human Resources & Risk Management will complete the 
position grading. The Personnel Committee will be provided with a Position Description 
and recommended grade level. 


If denied by the Personnel or Finance Committee: no action will be taken. 
 


If approved by the Personnel Committee: The Director of Human Resources & Risk 
Management will forward the request to Finance and Council. Council will be provided 
with the resolution, a Position Description and recommended grade level. 


If approved by Council the recruiting process will begin. 
See Procedure. 


3.0 Procedures 
Human Resources & Risk Management will post the position. Recruiting occurs 
concurrently both internally and externally. The posting will take place on the City's Website 
and other advertising locations. An email regarding the open position is also sent to City 
Network employees and a hard copy posted at City Hall. 


 
All applications shall be submitted to Human Resources & Risk Management for review. 
The Director of Human Resources& Risk Management will review the applications. Human 
Resources & Risk Management will work with the Department Head or Designee to 
determine the number of candidates to be interviewed (minimum of one (1) up to five 
(5)). Human Resources & Risk Management Department Director or Designee will select 
the interview panel. If possible, a member of Council will be present during interviews 
(does not include LTE, Part-Time or Seasonal positions). 


 
Following the interview, the panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second 
round of interviews is needed or if they have a recommendation for hire. Second 
interviews are not required. The final candidate is screened by Human Resources & Risk 
Management including: background check, drug/alcohol screening, physicals, 
reference verification if applicable and any other screening deemed necessary for the 







16  


position. Human Resources & Risk Management will contact the final candidate to make 
the contingent offer and send a contingent offer letter of employment to the candidate. 
The offer will include the position title, compensation, status along with the start date and 
time. Orientation of the new employee will be conducted by Human Resources & Risk 
Management. 


 
Candidates who were interviewed, but not selected, may be considered for up to one 
year for like positions. 


 
4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
5.0 Council Approved 


August 24, 2021 





		20 R-25-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the elimination of the requirement to verify references during the hiring process.

		20a Hiring Policy - Leadership REDLINE FINAL

		Creating a new Leadership position:

		Leadership positions to be filled in the Police or Fire Departments:



		20b Reference  Background Checks Policy REDLINE

		A. Employment Eligibility

		B. Verification of Submitted Application Information

		C. Past Employer Checks

		D. Criminal Records

		E. National Criminal Records & Caregiver Background Checks for Applicants, Employees and Volunteers

		G. Background Investigations

		H. Credit Checks

		I. Record-keeping

		J. Legal Restrictions

		K. Providing References



		20c Hiring Policy - Seasonal REDLINE

		Hiring Policy - Full & Part-Time Positions REDLINE

		I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description

		II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description

		If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin.

		Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description

		If approved by Council the recruiting process will begin.








Page 1 of 6 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Repealing and Recreating Sections 10-311 through 10-319 of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


Chapter 10 
Relating to Minimum Maintenance Standards and Outdoor Storage 


Committee Action:     
Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -1- 2022 Date Introduced:  January 25, 2022 
February 8, 2022 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
1. Chapter 10 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is repealed and recreated to provide as 


follows: 
 


ARTICLE VII. MINIMUM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS AND OUTDOOR STORAGE 


Sec. 10-311. Penalty. 


Any person who shall violate any provision of this article or any order, rule or regulation made under this 
article shall be subject to a penalty as provided in section 1-3.  


(Code 1986, § 14.20) 


Sec. 10-312. Purpose. 


(a) The city council finds that there are or may be in the future pieces of real property and buildings in the city 
which are so dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, unsanitary, overcrowded or inadequately maintained as to 
constitute a menace to the persons residing on such property and to be deleterious to the general aesthetics 
and property values of persons residing in the vicinity of such property. The city council further finds that 
widespread concern exists regarding the allocation of responsibilities for such maintenance between owners 
of such property and tenants residing therein.  


(b) It is the purpose of this article to preserve and promote the public health, safety, convenience, prosperity 
and general welfare of the people of the city by regulating in a manner which corrects the problems in 
subsection (a) of this section with only minimal infringement on each affected person's property.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(1)) 


Sec. 10-313. Definitions. 


The definitions listed in section 10-241 shall apply to this article wherever the words so defined appear.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(2)) 







 


 Page 2 of 6 


Cross reference(s)—Definitions generally, § 1-2.  


Sec. 10-314. Applicability. 


This article shall apply to all dwellings, dwelling units, roominghouses and premises including single-family 
owner-occupied dwellings.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(3)) 


Sec. 10-315. Inspections. 


Upon written complaint to the mayor, city councilmember, police department or building inspector, the 
building inspector may seek issuance of a search warrant from the municipal judge to make an inspection to 
determine the condition of the dwelling, dwelling unit, rooming unit or premises complained about so that he may 
prefer in the duty of eliminating the problem consistent with the findings of section 10-312. For the purpose of 
making such inspection, every occupant of a dwelling or dwelling unit shall give the owner thereof, or his agent, 
access to any part of such dwelling or dwelling unit or its premises at any reasonable time for making such repairs 
or alterations which are necessary to comply with this article or any lawful order issued by the building inspector.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(4)) 


Sec. 10-316. Enforcement and appeals. 


(a) Notice of violation. Whenever the building inspector determines that reasonable grounds exist to believe 
that a violation has occurred of any provision of this article affecting the health of the occupant of a dwelling, 
dwelling unit or rooming unit or the health of the general public, or whenever the building inspector 
determines that reasonable grounds exist to believe that a violation has occurred of any provision of this 
article affecting the safety of such occupant or the safety or aesthetic values of the general public, the 
building inspector shall notify the person responsible for such violation.  


(b) Information on notice. Such notice shall:  


(1) Be in writing;  


(2) State the reason for its issuance;  


(3) Allow 15 days for the performance of any act it requires;  


(4) Be served on the person responsible for such violation;  


(5) Contain an outline of remedial action which, if taken, will comply with this article.  


(c) Service of notice. Service of such notice upon the person responsible for the violation shall be deemed proper 
if served personally, or by registered mail to his last known address, or by posting it in a conspicuous place in 
the premises affected by such notice or by serving the notice by any other method authorized by statute.  


(d) Hearing. Any person affected by such notice may petition for a hearing before the board of appeals. Such 
petition must be filed with the department of planning and development within ten days after service of the 
notice. Such petition shall contain a written statement of the grounds for appeal. Upon receipt of such 
petition, the department of planning and development shall give written notice to the petitioner of the time 
and place of the hearing, which shall be held as soon as practicable after receipt of the petition. At such 
hearing, the petitioner shall be given an opportunity to be heard and to show cause why he should not 
comply with such notice.  


(e) Determination of board of appeals. After the hearing, the board of appeals shall sustain, modify or withdraw 
the petition based upon whether or not there has been compliance with this article. If the board of appeals 
sustains or modifies such notice, it shall be deemed to be an order. Any notice served shall automatically 







 


Page 3 of 6 


become an order if no petition is filed with the department of planning and development within ten days 
after service of the notice. After a hearing in a case when the board of appeals sustains a notice suspending a 
permit required by this article, the permit is deemed to have been revoked. Any permit suspended by notice 
shall be automatically revoked if no petition is filed with the department of planning and development within 
ten days after service of the notice.  


(f) Record of proceedings; appeal. The hearing proceedings shall be summarized and reduced to writing. The 
public record of each case shall contain the written summary, the board of appeals' written findings and 
decision and any notice or order issued in connection therewith. Any person aggrieved by the board of 
appeals' decision may seek judicial review thereof as provided by law.  


(g) Emergency work and orders. Whenever the building inspector finds that an emergency exists which requires 
immediate action to protect the public health or safety, he may, without notice or hearing, issue an order 
reciting the facts constituting the emergency and requiring that such action be taken as he deems necessary 
to meet the emergency. Such emergency order shall be effective immediately notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this article. Upon petition by the affected person, a hearing shall be held as soon as possible. 
After such hearing, the board of appeals shall sustain, modify or revoke the emergency order depending 
upon whether or not the building inspector has complied with this article.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(5)) 


Sec. 10-317. Property maintenance requirements. 


(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to promote the general welfare and economic well-being of the city 
by establishing minimum standards for the maintenance of outdoor areas within, and exterior and structural 
components of structures on, lands within the City of Stoughton.  


(b) Applicability. This section applies to all public and private lands and structures located in the city. Nothing in 
this section limits the applicability of other sections of Code to lands, buildings and structures in the City of 
Stoughton.  


(c) Property maintenance requirements. All lands and structures located in the City of Stoughton shall be 
maintained in accordance with the following minimum standards and requirements:  


(1) Drainage. Courts, yards and other outdoor areas shall be graded to divert stormwater away from 
buildings. Ground surface areas shall be sloped away from buildings at a grade of at least one-half inch 
per foot for a minimum of five feet where possible, or by alternative means such as eaves, troughs or 
downspout extensions. Additionally, stormwater shall not be diverted towards neighboring properties.  


(2) [Blank]  


(3) [Blank] 


(2) Grasses and weeds. Outdoor areas shall be kept free from noxious weeds while grasses and non-
noxious weeds must be maintained to a height not to exceed one foot in accordance with subsection 
58-8(6).  


(3) Debris. Outdoor areas and adjacent rights-of-way shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition, 
free from debris, rubbish, physical hazards, rodent harborage, infestation, and animal feces.  


(4) Fences and walks. All private fences and walks shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary manner and 
kept in good condition. Additionally, private outdoor walkways serving multiple dwellings shall be kept 
free from snow, ice and other hazardous conditions.  


(5) Exterior surfaces. All exterior surfaces of buildings, fences and other structures that are not inherently 
resistant to deterioration, including but not limited to exterior surfaces of windows and doors, shall be 
treated with a protective coating of paint or other suitable preservative that will provide protection 
from weathering and maintain an attractive appearance. Exterior surfaces treated with paint or other 







 


Page 4 of 6 


preservative shall be maintained so as to prevent chipping, cracking, or other deterioration of the 
exterior surface or the surface treatment and to present an attractive appearance.  


(6) Yard areas. All excavation and land filling operations shall be leveled off to permit mowing of grass and 
weeds. Vacant land shall be planted with grass or otherwise landscaped in a manner that will 
effectively prevent soil erosion, and in compliance with any applicable approved site plan, landscaping 
plan or zoning requirements. Outdoor storage shall conform to the requirements of section 10-318 and 
chapter 78.  


(7) Structural requirements. Every foundation, exterior wall, roof, canopy, overhang and chimney shall be 
weather tight, watertight, rodent proof and shall be kept in good repair, and free from any condition 
that could cause structural degradation of the building. Any sagging or bulging portion of a building 
shall be repaired to a stable condition that is, to the extent practicable, level and plumb. All chimneys 
and breaching shall be constructed and maintained so that they safely and properly remove the 
products of combustion from the building.  


(8) Windows and doors. Windows, doors, and basement hatchways shall be weather tight, watertight, and 
rodent proof, and kept in good repair. All door and window hardware shall be installed and maintained 
in proper working condition.  


(9) Outdoor stairs and porches. Outdoor stairs, porches and appurtenances thereto shall be constructed in 
accordance with applicable building code requirements, and maintained to be safe, in good repair, and 
attractive.  


(10) Outdoor displays and furniture. Street furniture, outdoor display areas and other temporary furnishings 
and material shall be maintained in an orderly and attractive manner, and in conformance with city 
approvals and all other required permits and regulations.  


(11) Waste containers and dumpsters. Waste containers and dumpsters shall be maintained in good repair 
and must be maintained to prevent overflow of waste. Waste container enclosures shall be kept in 
good repair and attractive.  


(12) Vegetative buffers and other vegetation. Vegetative buffers shall be maintained in such a manner as to 
comply with any applicable screening height, density, opacity or other requirements. Vegetative 
buffers and other vegetation shall be trimmed, watered and cared for in such a manner as to stay in a 
healthy and attractive condition.  


(13) Driveway, parking and loading areas. All driveway, parking, loading and outside storage areas shall be a 
paved surface and maintained in accordance with city standards, including any site plan or landscaping 
plan to which the land is subject. Paved surfaces shall be kept in good repair, and shall be repaired or 
replaced when any deterioration occurs to the extent that the rock or sub-base is visible.  


(14) Signage. Permitted signs shall be maintained in good repair, and in conformance with city standards. 
Exterior surfaces of signs treated with paint or other preservative shall be maintained so as to prevent 
chipping, cracking, or other deterioration of the exterior surface or the surface treatment and to 
present an attractive appearance.  


(15) Lighting. Lawful exterior lighting shall be maintained in the permitted and constructed condition and in 
good working order.  


(16) Rodent or insect infestation. Where rodent or insect infestation exists in a dwelling unit or in the shared 
or public parts of any dwelling containing two or more dwelling units, where caused by the owner's 
failure to maintain the dwelling in a rodent proof or reasonably insect proof condition, the owner shall 
be responsible for extermination.  


(d) Responsibility for compliance. Owners of lands in the city shall be responsible for maintaining or causing 
maintenance of their lands in compliance with this section.  







 


Page 5 of 6 


(e) Enforcement and penalties. 


(1) Enforcement authority. This section may be enforced by the department of planning and development 
staff or other person(s) authorized by the common council.  


(2) Opportunity to correct violations. Before initiating legal action to recover forfeitures or obtain 
injunctive or other relief for violations of this section, the department of planning and development 
staff, or other person authorized by the common council, shall notify the owner of the violation or 
violations, and order the owner to correct the violation or violations within such time as the applicable 
city official deems appropriate under the circumstances. The applicable city official may enter into an 
agreement with the owner, providing for correction of the violation or violations. An order to correct 
violations may be appealed to the common council by filing a notice of appeal with the city clerk within 
ten days after the order is issued. An appeal shall stay the order. If the owner corrects the violation or 
violations in accordance with an order or agreement under this section, the owner shall not be subject 
to forfeitures for such violation or violations. If the owner fails to correct the violation or violations in 
accordance an order or agreement under this section, the city may recover forfeitures for each day of 
noncompliance, beginning with the first day of noncompliance. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, 
if the applicable city official determines that the violation or violations presents an imminent risk of 
harm or damage to any historic structure, historic site, or the public health or safety, the applicable city 
official may take immediate legal action to enforce this section, and there shall be no right to appeal 
such action to the common council.  


(3) Forfeitures. Violations of this section shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than $50.00 nor more 
than $1,000.00, together with the costs of prosecution and applicable penalty assessments, fees and 
surcharges. Each day of violation or noncompliance shall constitute a separate offense.  


(4) Injunctions. As a substitute for or in addition to forfeiture actions, the city may institute a court action 
seeking injunctive relief to enforce the provisions of this section. It shall not be necessary for the city to 
take corrective action or prosecute for forfeiture before seeking injunctive relief.  


(5) Corrective action. If maintenance or other work is done to a structure in the City of Stoughton in 
violation of this section, chapter 78, or Title 36 Code of Federal Regulations 67.7, the department of 
planning and development staff may order the owner of the subject land to take such corrective action 
as the staff person deems appropriate to restore the building to the condition it would have been in if 
the work had been done in compliance with this section, chapter 78, and Title 36 Code of Federal 
Regulations 67.7. An order by the department of planning and development staff to take corrective 
action may be appealed to the common council, within 30 days after the order is issued, for a de novo 
review. On appeal, the common council may order the owner of the subject property to take such 
corrective action as the common council deems appropriate to restore the building to the condition it 
would have been in if the work had been done in compliance with this section, chapter 78 and Title 36 
Code of Federal Regulations 67.7.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(6); Ord. No. 0-23-10, § 1, 11-9-2010; Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 1, 5-12-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 1, adopted May 12, 2020, changed the title of § 10-317 from maintenance 
responsibilities of owners and occupants to property maintenance requirements.  


Sec. 10-318. Outdoor storage. 


(a) Applicability. This section applies to all private lands located in the City of Stoughton. Nothing in this section 
limits the applicability of other sections of this Code to lands, buildings and structures in the City of 
Stoughton.  


(b) Restrictions on outdoor storage. No person may store or keep any of the following items outside of a fully 
enclosed structure on any private land in the city, unless outdoor storage of such item is expressly authorized 
by the zoning regulations applicable to such land use:  







 


Page 6 of 6 


(1) Inoperative or unlicensed vehicles, boats or aircraft.  


(2) Junk or machinery.  


(3) Building or construction materials not being used in an active, ongoing and lawful building or 
construction project.  


(4) Landscaping materials, unless those materials are incorporated as an integral part of the landscaping 
on the property, or unless those materials are in the process of being incorporated in an active, 
ongoing and lawful landscaping project.  


(5) Commercial trucks, tractors or trailers.  


(6) Appliances, including but not limited to furnaces, hot water heaters, or water softeners, stoves, 
refrigerators, dishwashers, washers, dryers, except that an operable gas or charcoal grills may be kept 
outside.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(7); Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 2, 5-12-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 2, adopted May 12, 2020, changed the title of § 10-318 from outdoor 
storage of unsightly items to outdoor storage.  


Sec. 10-319. Abatement of nonconforming uses. 


All dwellings, dwelling units, premises and uses existing on January 23, 1979, which are in violation of any 
provisions of this article are nonconforming uses which shall be abated by February 23, 1979.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(8)) 


 
2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  January 7, 2022 
 
To:  Public Safety Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Outdoor Storage Ordinance Revisions 
 
We have been working with the City Attorney to evaluate our outdoor storage ordinances and the 
tools for compliance.  As proposed, Outdoor Storage violations will be classified as Public 
Nuisances.  The Public Nuisance regulations offer abatement procedures not found in Chapter 
10. 
 
These ordinance revisions are proposed for your consideration. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works 1-11-2022 - Nordic Ridge Phase IV Accept Public Improvements.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		08 O-1-2022 -Ordinance - Chapter 10  (1-7-2022)

		ARTICLE VII. MINIMUM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS AND OUTDOOR STORAGE

		Sec. 10-311. Penalty.

		Sec. 10-312. Purpose.

		Sec. 10-313. Definitions.

		Sec. 10-314. Applicability.

		Sec. 10-315. Inspections.

		Sec. 10-316. Enforcement and appeals.

		Sec. 10-317. Property maintenance requirements.

		Sec. 10-318. Outdoor storage.

		Sec. 10-319. Abatement of nonconforming uses.





		08a Public Safety - Minimum Maintenance Ordinances






Page 1 of 8 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Repealing and Recreating Sections 58-1 through 58-13 of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


Chapter 58 
Relating to Public Nuisances 


Committee Action:    
 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -2- 2022 Date Introduced:      January 25, 2022 
February 8, 2022 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
1. Chapter 58, Sections 58-1 through 58-13, of the Stoughton Municipal Code is repealed and 


recreated to provide as follows: 
 


Chapter 58 PUBLIC NUISANCES 


Sec. 58-1. Public nuisances prohibited. 


No person shall erect, contrive, cause, continue, maintain or permit to exist any public nuisance within the 
city.  


(Code 1986, § 10.01) 


Sec. 58-2. Public nuisance defined. 


Any of the following is a A public nuisance:   


(a) Any is a act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall continue for such length of time as to:  


(1) Substantially annoy, injure or endanger the comfort, health, repose or safety of the public.  


(2) In any way render the public insecure in life or in the use of property.  


(3) Greatly offend the public morals or decency.  


(4) Unlawfully and substantially interfere with, obstruct, or tend to obstruct or render dangerous for 
passage any street, alley, highway, navigable body of water or other public way or the use of public 
property.  


(b)  A violation of this Chapter 58. 


(c) A violation of Section 10-318. 


(Code 1986, § 10.02) 


Cross reference(s)—Definitions generally, § 1-2.  







 


Page 2 of 8 


Sec. 58-3. Penalty. 


Any person who shall violate any provision of this chapter or permit or cause a public nuisance shall be 
subject to a forfeiture as provided in section 1-3.  


(Code 1986, § 10.08) 


Sec. 58-4. Open cisterns, wells, basements or other dangerous excavations prohibited. 


No person shall have or permit on any premises owned or occupied by him any open cisterns, cesspools, 
wells, unused basements, excavations or other dangerous openings. All such places shall be filled, securely covered 
or fenced in such manner as to prevent injury to any person and any cover shall be of a design, size and weight 
that the cover cannot be removed by small children.  


(Code 1986, § 9.02(7)) 


Sec. 58-5. Abandoned or unattended iceboxes, etc., prohibited. 


No person shall leave or permit to remain outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within any 
unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control in a place accessible to children, 
any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other container which has an airtight door or lid, 
snap lock or other locking device which may not be released from the inside without first removing such door or 
lid, snap lock or other locking device from the icebox, refrigerator or other container unless it is displayed for sale 
on the premises of the owner or his agent and is securely locked or fastened.  


(Code 1986, § 9.02(8)) 


Sec. 58-6 Abatement—Generally. 


(a) Responsibility for enforcement; inspections. It shall be the duty of each department head to enforce those 
provisions of this chapter that come within the jurisdiction of their respective offices, and each department 
head shall make or cause to be made periodic inspections and inspections upon complaint to ensure such 
provisions are not violated. No action shall be taken under this section to abate a public nuisance unless the 
officer has inspected or caused to be inspected the premises where the nuisance is alleged to exist and has 
satisfied himself or herself that a nuisance does in fact exist.  


(b) Summary abatement. 


(1) Order of abatement. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists within the city 
and that there is imminent danger to the public health, safety or peace, the officer may, without notice 
or hearing, issue an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance constituting imminent danger to 
the public and requiring immediate action be taken as the officer deems necessary to abate the 
nuisance. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the order shall be effective 
immediately. Any person to whom such order is directed shall comply with the order immediately.  


(2) Abatement by city. Whenever the owner or occupant shall refuse or neglect to remove or abate the 
condition described in the order, the inspecting officer shall, in his or her discretion, enter upon the 
premises and cause the nuisance to be removed or abated and the city shall recover the expenses 
incurred thereby from the owner or occupant of the premises or from the person who has caused or 
permitted the nuisance.  







 


Page 3 of 8 


(c) Nonsummary abatement by city. 


(1) Order to abate nuisance. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists on private 
premises but that the nature of such nuisance is not such as to threaten imminent danger to the public 
health, safety or peace, the officer shall issue an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance and 
requiring the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance or the owner of the 
premises where the public nuisance is located to remove or abate the condition described in the order 
by a date specified therein (the abatement date). The order shall be served personally on such person 
and the owner if different, and, at the option of the inspecting officer, the order may be mailed to the 
last known address of the person(s) to be served. If the owner or the occupant cannot be served, the 
order may be served by posting it on the main entrance of the property or by publishing as a Class 3 
notice under Wis. Stats. ch. 985. The time limit specified in the order runs from the earlier of the date 
of posting, service or publication.  


(2) Abatement by city. If the owner or occupant fails or refuses to comply within the time period 
prescribed, the inspecting officer shall enter upon the premises and cause the nuisance to be removed 
or abated and the city shall recover the expenses incurred thereby from the owner or occupant of the 
premises or from the person who has caused or permitted the nuisance.  


(3) Remedy from abatement order. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the 
abatement date, apply to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the 
premises and abating or removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  


(d) Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section shall be 
collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, if notice 
to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed against the real 
estate as a special charge.  


(e) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The city 
reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs under 
Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(f) Other action. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the officer may 
cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person causing, permitting or 
maintaining the public nuisance and the owner of the premises where the public nuisance is located.  


(Code 1986, § 10.06; Ord. No. 0-4-2012, § 1, 3-27-2012; Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 1, 1-14-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 1, adopted Jan. 14, 2020, changed the title of § 50-6 from abatement of 
public nuisances to abatement—generally.  


Sec. 58-7. Cost of abatement. 


In addition to any forfeiture other penalty imposed by this chapter for the erection, contrivance, creation, 
continuance or maintenance of a public nuisance, the cost of abating a public nuisance by the city shall be 
collected as a debt from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance, and if 
notice to abate the nuisance has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed against the real estate as a 
special charge.  


(Code 1986, § 10.07) 







 


Page 4 of 8 


Sec. 58-8. Public nuisances affecting health. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are specifically declared to be public health 
nuisances, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other health nuisances coming within the 
definition of section 58-2:  


(1) Adulterated food. All decayed, harmfully adulterated or unwholesome food or drink sold or offered for 
sale to the public.  


(2) Unburied carcasses. 


a. Nonhuman consumption. Carcasses of animals, birds or fowl not intended for human 
consumption or food which are not buried or otherwise disposed of in a sanitary manner within 
24 hours after death.  


b. Human consumption. Dead animal carcasses intended for human consumption shall be removed 
within 96 hours of hanging and, to the extent possible, the carcasses shall be hung in a manner to 
minimize public view.  


(3) Breeding places for vermin, etc. Accumulations of decayed animal or vegetable matter, trash, rubbish, 
rotting lumber, bedding, packing material, scrap metal or any material whatsoever in which flies, 
mosquitoes, disease-carrying insects, rats or other vermin may breed.  


(4) Stagnant water. All stagnant water in which mosquitoes, flies or other insects can multiply.  


(5) Privy vaults and garbage cans. Privy vaults and garbage cans which are not flytight.  


(6) Noxious weeds and wild growth. All noxious weeds and other rank growth of vegetation.  


a. Required. The owner of any land within the city shall destroy all noxious weeds and keep mowed 
all grasses, as defined in subsection (b) of this section, which grow on owner's property and on 
any terraces and ditches abutting such property.  


b. Defined. The term "noxious weed" or "weeds" as used in this section are defined by Wis. Stats. §§ 
23.235 and 66.0407, respectively, as amended, and also include those weeds set forth in § 58.11 
and shall also include common ragweed (Ambrosia atemisiifolia), giant ragweed (Ambrosia 
trifida), burdock (Actrium spp.), and Japanese knotwood (Fallopia Japonica); all other plants 
defined as noxious by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources; and all other grasses over 
12 inches in height.  


c. Managed natural landscape areas. Planned natural and native landscape areas grown in a 
managed landscape plan will be allowed and shall not be subject to this section if the areas meet 
and are maintained as per the following criteria: All natural landscape areas shall comply with all 
Wisconsin law and may include native and naturalized plants including, but not necessarily 
limited to, ferns, wildflowers, grasses, shrubs and trees. These areas are to be kept free of all 
"noxious weed" or "weeds" as defined in this section at all times. Natural landscape areas shall 
be set back a minimum of ten feet from all property lines and driveways unless the property is 
abutted by a roadway, fence or similar barrier separating it from adjoining residential properties, 
then the natural landscaping may be planted up to the property line (inside the sidewalk).  


d. Enforcement. Failure to correct a violation of this section may result in nuisance abatement as 
defined in section 58-6 and penalties as provided in sections 58-3 and 1-3.  


e. Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section 
shall be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the 
nuisance and, if notice to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such 
cost shall be assessed against the real estate as a special charge.  







 


Page 5 of 8 


f. Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting 
the abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the 
state. The city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, 
damages and costs under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such 
action.  


g. Other action. If the director of public work determines that a public nuisance exists within the 
city under this section, the director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of 
this section upon the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the 
owner or occupant of the premises where the public nuisance is located.  


(7) Water pollution. The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream, lake, canal or other body of water 
by sewage, creamery or industrial wastes or other substances.  


(8) Noxious odors, etc. Any use of property, substances or things within the city emitting or causing any 
foul, offensive, noisome, nauseous, noxious or disagreeable odors, gases, effluvia or stenches 
extremely repulsive to the physical senses of ordinary persons which annoy, discomfort, injure or 
inconvenience the health of any appreciable number of persons within the city.  


(9) Street pollution. Any use of property which shall cause any nauseous or unwholesome liquid or 
substance to flow into or upon any street, gutter, alley, sidewalk or public place within the city.  


(10) Storage of junk, etc. Outdoor The open storage in violation of Section 10-318 junk, refuse, litter, 
garbage and scrap or waste matter.  


(11) Reserved.  


(12) Animal defecation. All excreted animal feces which is not removed immediately and properly disposed 
of by burial or other suitable sanitary means by the person owning or having control of such animal.  


(Code 1986, § 10.03; Ord. No. 0-20-10, § 1, 11-9-2010; Ord. No. 0-11-2013, 6-11-2013; Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 2, 1-
14-2020) 


Sec. 58-9. Public nuisances offending morals and decency. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are specifically declared to be public nuisances 
offending public morals and decency, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other nuisances 
offending public morals and decency coming within the definition of section 58-2:  


(1) Disorderly houses. All disorderly houses, bawdy houses, houses of ill fame, gambling houses and 
buildings or structures kept or resorted to for the purpose of prostitution, promiscuous sexual 
intercourse or gambling.  


(2) Unlicensed sale of liquor and beer. All places where intoxicating liquor or fermented malt beverages are 
sold, possessed, stored, brewed, bottled, manufactured or rectified without a permit or license as 
provided for by chapter 14.  


(3) Continuous violation of city ordinances. Any place or premises within the city where city ordinances or 
laws relating to public health, safety, peace, morals or welfare are openly, continuously, repeatedly 
and intentionally violated.  


(Code 1986, § 10.04) 


Sec. 58-10. Public nuisances affecting peace and safety. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are declared to be public nuisances affecting 
peace and safety, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other nuisances affecting public peace 
or safety coming within the definition of section 58-2:  







 


Page 6 of 8 


(1) Signs, billboards, etc. All signs and billboards, awnings and other similar structures over or near streets, 
sidewalks, public grounds or places frequented by the public so situated or constructed as to endanger 
the public safety.  


(2) Illegal buildings. All buildings erected, repaired or altered in violation of the provisions of chapter 10 
relating to materials and manner of construction of buildings and structures within the city.  


(3) Unauthorized traffic signs. All unauthorized signs, signals, markings or devices placed or maintained 
upon or in view of any public highway or railway crossing which purport to be or may be mistaken as 
an official traffic control device, railroad sign or signal or which because of its color, location, brilliance 
or manner of operation interferes with the effectiveness of any such device, sign or signal.  


(4) Obstruction of intersections. All trees, hedges, billboards or other obstructions which prevent persons 
driving vehicles on public streets, alleys or highways from obtaining a clear view of traffic when 
approaching an intersection or pedestrian crosswalk.  


(5) Tree limbs. All limbs of trees which project over a public sidewalk which are less than nine feet or which 
are less than 14 feet above the surface of the street.  


(6) Shrubs. All shrubs or plantings adjacent to sidewalks which encroach the sidewalk.  


(7) Hazardous trees. All trees which are a menace to the public safety or are the cause of substantial 
annoyance to the general public.  


(8) Dilapidated buildings. All buildings or structures so old, dilapidated or out of repair as to be dangerous, 
unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human use.  


(9) Wires over streets. All wires over streets, alleys or public grounds which are strung less than 15 feet 
above the surface thereof.  


(10) Obstructions of streets and excavations. All obstructions of streets, alleys, sidewalks or crosswalks and 
all excavations in or under the streets, alleys, sidewalks or crosswalks, except as permitted by 
ordinance or which, although made in accordance with such ordinances, are kept or maintained for an 
unreasonable or illegal length of time after the purpose thereof has been accomplished or do not 
conform to the permit.  


(11) Unlawful assembly. Any unauthorized or unlawful use of property abutting on a public street, alley or 
sidewalk or of a public street, alley or sidewalk which causes large crowds of people to gather, 
obstructing traffic and free use of the streets or sidewalks.  


(12) Flammable liquids. Repeated or continuous violations of ordinance or law relating to the storage of 
flammable liquids.  


(13) Unsafe sidewalks. The allowing of rainwater, ice or snow to fall from a building or structure upon a 
sidewalk without taking precautions to safeguard the public in using such sidewalks.  


(14) Barbed wire fences. Barbed wire fences located within three feet of a public sidewalk.  


(15) Hedges, bushes and trees. Any hedges, bushes, or trees that have become overgrown, decayed or out 
of ordinary maintenance. Hedges or bushes shall be cut or trimmed as often as necessary to maintain a 
neat and attractive appearance.  


(Code 1986, § 10.05; Ord. No. 0-5-2012, § 1, 3-27-2012; Ord. No. 0-10-2016, § 1, 6-28-2016) 


Sec. 58-11. Reserved. 







 


Page 7 of 8 


Sec. 58-12. Diseased, infested or dangerous trees or shrubs a nuisance. 


(a) Public nuisances declared. The continued existence of injured or diseased or infested trees or other plantings, 
and the failure to properly treat or control the same which is likely to cause the spread of disease or 
infestation or endanger persons because of the deteriorated condition, is hereby declared to be a public 
nuisance requiring abatement.  


(b) Abatement. 


(1) Order. Whenever the director of public works shall find on examination that any tree or shrub or part 
thereof growing or located upon private premises is a public nuisance as defined in this section, he or 
she shall notify the owner, or if the owner is unknown and there is a tenant or operator occupying said 
property then to such tenant or operator, in writing that the nuisance must be sprayed, removed, or 
otherwise abated as directed in the order within the time specified, which shall not be less than 14 
days unless the director of public works shall determine that immediate action is necessary for public 
safety or health. The order shall be served personally on the owner, or if the owner is unknown and 
there is a tenant or operator occupying said property then to such tenant or operator, and, at the 
option of the director of public works may be mailed to the last known address of the person(s) to be 
served. If the owner or the occupant cannot be served, the order may be served by posting it on the 
main entrance of the property or by publishing as a Class 3 notice under Wis. Stats. ch. 985. The time 
limit specified in the order runs from the earlier of the date of posting, service or publication.  


(2) Abatement by city. If the owner of such premises or occupant if different from owner refuses or 
neglects to comply with the notice to abate a nuisance under this section within the time specified, the 
director of public works shall cause the nuisance to be sprayed, removed or otherwise abated and shall 
report the expense thereof to the city treasurer, who shall enter it as a charge against the property 
upon which the tree or shrub is located.  


(3) Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the abatement date, apply 
to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the premises and abating or 
removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  


(4) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The 
city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs 
under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(5) Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the 
director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person 
causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises 
where the public nuisance is located.  


(c) Dangerous trees. 


(1) Definition. "Dangerous tree" means any tree which, in the opinion of the director of public works, is so 
decayed or injured, or which for any other reason is likely to fall upon any sidewalk or street or other 
public property.  


(2) Notice to remove. Whenever the director of public works shall have notice of a dangerous tree which is 
likely to fall, it shall give notice in writing to the owner of the land where such tree is located, requiring 
the owner to remove the tree within 14 days after receiving the notice. The notice may be served 
personally on the owner or agent thereof or by registered mail addressed to the owner or agent.  


(3) Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the abatement date, apply 
to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the premises and abating or 
removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  







 


Page 8 of 8 


(4) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The 
city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs 
under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(5) Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the 
director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person 
causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises 
where the public nuisance is located.  


(6) Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section shall 
be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, 
if notice to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed 
against the real estate as a special charge.  


(Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 3, 1-14-2020) 


Sec. 58-13. Interference prohibited. 


No person shall prevent, delay or interfere with the director of public works, or designee, or any of his/her 
agents or employees while they are engaged in the performance of duties imposed by this chapter. No person shall 
refuse to permit the director or employees of the department of public works to enter upon his premises at 
reasonable times to exercise the duties imposed by this section or permit any public nuisance to remain on any 
premises owned or controlled by him when ordered by the director of public works to abate such nuisance.  


(Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 4, 1-14-2020) 


 
2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  January 7, 2022 
 
To:  Public Safety Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Outdoor Storage Ordinance Revisions 
 
We have been working with the City Attorney to evaluate our outdoor storage ordinances and the 
tools for compliance.  As proposed, Outdoor Storage violations will be classified as Public 
Nuisances.  The Public Nuisance regulations offer abatement procedures not found in Chapter 
10. 
 
These ordinance revisions are proposed for your consideration. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works 1-11-2022 - Nordic Ridge Phase IV Accept Public Improvements.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		09 O-2-2022 -Chapter 58 Ordinance (1-7-2022)

		Chapter 58 PUBLIC NUISANCES

		Sec. 58-1. Public nuisances prohibited.

		Sec. 58-2. Public nuisance defined.

		Sec. 58-3. Penalty.

		Sec. 58-4. Open cisterns, wells, basements or other dangerous excavations prohibited.

		Sec. 58-5. Abandoned or unattended iceboxes, etc., prohibited.

		Sec. 58-6 Abatement—Generally.

		Sec. 58-7. Cost of abatement.

		Sec. 58-8. Public nuisances affecting health.

		Sec. 58-9. Public nuisances offending morals and decency.

		Sec. 58-10. Public nuisances affecting peace and safety.

		Sec. 58-11. Reserved.

		Sec. 58-12. Diseased, infested or dangerous trees or shrubs a nuisance.

		Sec. 58-13. Interference prohibited.





		09a Public Safety - Minimum Maintenance Ordinances






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (88) relating to 
No Parking Anytime on both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 
Committee Action:    


Public Safety committee recommends 6-0 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-3-2021 Date 
Introduced:  


January 25, 2022 
February 8, 2022 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (88) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of 
and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers 
and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in 
case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or 
parts of highways:  


(88) On both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 
 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 
Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (88) relating to 


No Parking Anytime on both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 


Committee Action:    


Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O- -2021 Date 


Introduced:  


 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (82) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 


actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is 


attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid 


obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


(88) On both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 


 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 


Acceptance of Public Improvements made by Harvest Farms, LLC for Nordic Ridge Phase IV 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Works recommended approval 4-0 on 1/20/22   


Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-11-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 25, 2022 


 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the NORDIC RIDGE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (MASTER) and the 
development agreements for Phase III (the “Agreement”), Harvest Farms, LLC (the “Developer”) is 
required to construct certain Public Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement require Developer to submit the following prior to acceptance of Public 
Improvements: 
 


• A written request by the Developer desiring the City to inspect the Public Improvements, and 
• Valid lien waivers from all persons and entities providing materials or performing work on the 


improvements for which certification is sought, and  
• Provide as-built drawings to the City consisting of four hard copies on paper, one electronic copy 


as a pdf file, and one electronic copy in dwg format or other digital format that is acceptable to the 
City, and 


• Provide to the City all information regarding such improvements that the City requests to comply 
with GASB 34; and 


• Provide a statement from the City Finance Director that all outstanding City costs, including 
engineering and inspection charges, have been paid in full; and  


• Provide a bacteriologically safe water sample is obtained and tested by a certified agency, with the 
report from such agency confirming such testing, and 


 
WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the City accept certain Public Improvements (the “Completed 
Improvements”) for Nordic Ridge Phase IV; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Planning Director and designees have inspected the Completed Improvements and 
found them to be acceptable and ready for acceptance pursuant to the Agreement and subject to completion 
of items provided in correspondence dated November 23, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the value to complete the remaining items will be added to and secured with the surety 
associated with Phase V; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee met on January 20, 2022 to consider acceptance of the 
Completed Improvements, and recommended that the Completed Improvements be accepted pursuant to 
the Agreement; and 
 
 
 







NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that 
Completed Improvements are accepted pursuant to the Agreement, subject to completion of the items 
identified in the correspondence dated November 23, 2021, and authorizes that the construction letter of 
credit provided by Developer for Phase IV be returned and the value to complete the remaining items will 
be added to and secured with the surety associated with Phase V. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 


 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Resolution accepting public improvements - Nordic Ridge Phase IV.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  January 17, 2022 
 
To:  Public Works Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Nordic Ridge Public Improvements 
 
The Public Improvements for Nordic Ridge Phase IV are substantially complete.  The remaining 
work includes minor punch list corrective work.  The Developer has requested acceptance 
pursuant to the development agreements in place for these phases.  A resolution is provided and 
recommended for your consideration.   
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works 1-11-2022 - Nordic Ridge Phase IV Accept Public Improvements.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/







		25 R-11- 2022 Nordic Ridge Phase IV Accept Public Improvements

		25a Nordic Ridge IV Improvements

		25b Phase IV construction limits






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
 


Acceptance of Public Improvements made by Kettle Park West, LLC for Kettle Park West – 
The Meadows Addition Phase I 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Works recommended approval 4-0 on 1/20/22   


Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-12-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 25, 2022 


 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT – KETTLE PARK WEST (the 
“Agreement”), Kettle Park West, LLC, (the “Developer”) is required to construct certain Public 
Improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement requires Developer to submit the following prior to acceptance of Public 
Improvements: 
 


• A written request by the Developer desiring the City to inspect the Public Improvements, and 
• Valid lien waivers from all persons providing materials or performing work on the improvements 


for which certification is sought, and  
• Provide as-built drawings to the City consisting of four hard copies on paper, one electronic copy 


as a pdf file, and one electronic copy in .pdf format and in GIS format that is acceptable to the 
City, and 


• Provide a complete cost breakdown of all construction, engineering and administrative costs for 
the water main and respective service laterals, and 


• Provide a bacteriologically safe water sample is obtained and tested by a certified agency, with the 
report from such agency confirming such testing, and 


• Provide a statement from the City Finance Director that all outstanding City costs, including 
engineering and inspection charges, have been paid in full, and  


 
WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the City accept Public Improvements defined in the 
Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the Letter of Credit be reduced to $646,457.32; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Planning Director’s designees have inspected the Public Improvements and found 
them to be acceptable and ready for acceptance pursuant to the Agreement subject to punch list work and 
warranty.  The City Planning Director has determined that the Public Improvements, excepting street trees, 
are substantially complete and that no defects have been found to exist with respect to the Public 
Improvements and supports the Developer’s request to reduce the Letter of Credit to $646,457.32, and  
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that Public 
Improvements are accepted pursuant to the Agreement, that the one-year warranty period will end one 
year from the adoption date of this resolution, and the construction letter of credit provided by Developer 
be reduced to $646,457.32. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 


 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Resolution accepting public improvements - KPW Meadows Phase I.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  December 17, 2021 
 
To:  Public Works Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Kettle Park West – The Meadows Addition Phase 1 Public Improvements 
 
Kettle Park West, LLC installed the street and utilities for this plat in 2021.  The Public 
Improvements are ready for acceptance and per the Master Development Agreement we agree to 
reduce the Letter of Credit to $646,457.32.  A resolution is provided and recommended for your 
consideration.   
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works Committee KPW Meadows Phase I Public Improvements-final acceptance.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		26 R-12-2022 Resolution accepting public improvements - KPW Meadows Phase I

		26a Public Works Committee KPW Meadows Phase I Public Improvements-final acceptance






City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton WI  53589 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Harvest Farms, 
LLC for Construction of Phase 5 & 6 of the Nordic Ridge Plat 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommends approval 7-0 on 1/11/22 
Public Works recommends approval 4-0 on 1/20/22
Fiscal Impact: none  


 
File Number: 


 
R-13-2022


 
Date Introduced: January 25, 2022 


WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton entered into a “Master” Development Agreement for the 
development of Nordic Ridge; and 


WHEREAS, the property owner now plans to proceed with construction of phase 5 and 6; and 


WHEREAS, an “Agreement for Land Division Improvements for Nordic Ridge Phase 5 & 6” has been 
created that outlines the scope of improvements to be installed and funded by the Developer for Phase 5 
& 6; and 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) is 
hereby directed and authorized to enter into the Agreement for Land Division Improvements Nordic 
Ridge (Phase 5 & 6). 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Land Division Improvements - Nordic Ridge Phase V & VI.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  January 7, 2022 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item 
 
R- - 2022 – Nordic Ridge Phase V & VI Development Agreement  
 
In 2009, the City approved the Nordic Ridge Plat and entered into a master development 
agreement with the developer.  The Developer is now prepared to start construction on the fifth 
and sixth phases of this development.  An agreement has been drafted that outlines the scope of 
these phases and responsibility of the developer.   
 
Staff recommends the City enter into the “Agreement For Land Division Improvements Nordic 
Ridge [Phase 5 & 6]. 
 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 1-7-2022 - Nordic Ridge Agreement.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


AGREEMENT FOR  
LAND DIVISION IMPROVEMENTS  


NORDIC RIDGE 
[PHASE 5 & 6]  


Agreement entered into this ______ day of ________________, 2022, by and between 
Harvest Farms, LLC (the "Developer"), and the City of Stoughton ("City"), a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation.  


RECITALS  


A. The Developer has received approval by the City of Stoughton for a land division plat 
known as Nordic Ridge (hereinafter, the "Plat") for an area of land located in the City of 
Stoughton. 


B. Chapter 66, City of Stoughton ordinances, requires that provision be made for the 
installation of public improvements, including but not limited to, streets, street lighting, 
sanitary sewers and water mains and appurtenances thereto, storm sewer and stormwater 
drainage facilities, greenways, walk ways, and erosion controls, and that such 
improvements be constructed by the Developer without cost to the City. 


C. The Developer is bound by an agreement dated November 18, 2009, entitled "Nordic Ridge 
Development Agreement (Master)," relating to the installation of improvements needed to 
serve the Plat, among other things. 


D. The City’s purposes in entering into this Agreement are, among others, to provide for the 
installation of improvements to serve the next phase of developing the Plat, to require the 
Developer to pay the direct and indirect costs related to the required improvements, and to 
avoid the harmful effects of substandard subdivisions. 


E. The Developer now wishes to proceed with the installation of improvements needed to 
serve Lots 1 through 4, 57 through 78, 89 through 95, 142 through 156, 170 through 175, 
and Outlots 1 and 7 in the Plat, as shown on the attached Attachment A ("Phase 5 & 6").  
Subsequent construction phases will be defined in scope by future agreements for land 
division improvements pertaining to those phases. 


AGREEMENT  


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Developer and the City agree as follows:  


1  







2 
 


 


1. Development Agreement.  Developer continues to be bound by the Development 
Agreement dated November 18, 2009 (the “Development Agreement”).  Except as 
expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, the Development Agreement shall govern 
the development of Phase 5 & 6. 


 
2. Improvements.  The Developer shall construct and install those improvements needed to 


serve Phase 5 & 6.  The improvements contemplated herein include the following:  sanitary 
sewer service mains, manholes, laterals and all appurtenances; water mains, laterals, 
hydrants, valves and all appurtenances; storm sewer mains; streets, curb and gutter and 
sidewalks; street lights; and facilities for the provision of natural gas, electric, cable, and 
telephone utility service; and stormwater management improvements (hereinafter referred 
to as the "Improvements"), all in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the 
City Planning Director.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Improvements include utility 
and street improvements for 480 linear feet of Otteson Drive, 300 feet of Korgen Drive, 
1,750 lineal feet of Nordland Drive, 260 lineal feet of Odegard Drive, and 340 lineal feet 
of Markens Gate Road; 140 lineal feet of sidewalk for Outlot 1 and 160 lineal feet of 
sidewalk for Outlot 2. 


The Improvements will be designed, constructed and installed by the Developer at the 
Developer's sole expense.  All required improvements shall be designed, constructed and 
installed in accordance with the standard specifications of the City of Stoughton and 
standards of Chapter 66 of the City of Stoughton ordinances except as variances to or 
waivers of those requirements have been properly granted, and in accordance with plans 
and specifications approved by the City Planning Director.   Two copies of the approved, 
signed and stamped plans and specifications shall be provided to the City Planning 
Director, and one copy shall be provided to each contractor.  Only stamped and signed 
copies of the plans and specifications shall be used on the job site.  Where standards and/or 
specifications have not been established by the City, all work shall be made in accordance 
with established engineering practices as designated and approved by the City Planning 
Director.  


3. Prevailing Wage Rates.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 5 of the 
Development Agreement dated November 18, 2009, construction of the Improvements in 
Phase 4 shall be governed by those provisions of Wis. Stat. § 66.0903 (municipal prevailing 
wage and hour scales) in effect as of the date of this Agreement. 


4. City Approval of Starting Dates.  No land disturbances or work shall begin without the City 
Planning Director’s approval of a starting date and schedule which shall be submitted by 
Developer to the City Planning Director a minimum of seven calendar days before work is 
scheduled to begin.  A starting date will not be approved until the surety required by Section 
7 has been provided to the City. 







3 
 


5. Change to Work Order.   The City shall not be responsible for any costs or changes relating 
to this project except those specifically enumerated and agreed upon in this or subsequent 
written, signed agreements between the Developer and the City. 


6. Time of Completion.  All work specified herein, excepting the final asphalt lift, shall be 
completed within twelve months after the execution of this Agreement.  The final asphalt 
lift shall be completed during the construction season immediately following the 
construction season during which the binder course was installed.  No damages may be 
recovered by Developer or any person against the City for delay in completion of the 
Improvements. Notwithstanding the above, in the event of delay caused by events out of 
Developer’s control, the time for completion shall be extended for a period equal to the 
delay caused by such events. 


7. Surety.  Prior to commencement of construction of any required Improvements, the 
Developer shall provide the City with an irrevocable Letter of Credit or performance bond 
acceptable to the City Attorney, pursuant to Section 14 of the Development Agreement. 


8. Fees.  At or before the time this Agreement is executed, and except as provided in Section 
9 below, Developer shall pay the City all fees and costs required by the Development 
Agreement. 


9. Effective Date.  This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals.  


CITY OF STOUGHTON  


By________________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor  


By_______________________________ 
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


STATE OF WISCONSIN  


COUNTY OF DANE  


Personally, came before me this _________ day of ____________________, 2022, the 
above named Tim Swadley and Candee Christen, to me known to be  the Mayor and City Clerk of 
the City of Stoughton, and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
the same.  







4 
 


 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin Print 
Name:  


My Commission:    







5 
 


DEVELOPER:  


HARVEST FARMS, LLC  


By:  _______________________________ 
RHD Family Limited Partnership,   


by Robert H. Dvorak, Managing Member  
STATE OF WISCONSIN  


COUNTY OF DANE   


Personally came before me this ____ day of _______________, 2022, the above-named 
Robert H. Dvorak, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged the same as the properly authorized act of said corporation.  


 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin Print 
Name:  


My Commission:   


Approved as to Form:  


STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP  
Attorneys for the City of Stoughton  
________________________________  
By  Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney  


Attachments:    
Attachment A – Description of Phase 5 & 6  







 


ATTACHMENT A  
Description of Phase 5 & 6 


 


 







 


6  





		27 R-13-2022 Land Division Improvements - Nordic Ridge Phase V & VI

		27a Finance 1-7-2022 - Nordic Ridge Agreement

		27b Development Agreement (Phase 5 & 6)

		RECITALS

		AGREEMENT








 
33 East Main Street 
Suite 500 
Madison, WI  53703-3095 
 


Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 2038 
Madison, WI  53701-2038 
 


Phone: 
608.257.7181 
 


Fax: 
608.257.2508 
 


www.murphydesmond.com 


Matthew J. Fleming 
Direct Line 608.268.5606 
Facsimile 608.257.2508 
mfleming@murphydesmond.com 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 20 January 2022 


 


 


 


VIA EMAIL ONLY 


tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


Mayor Tim Swadley 


City of Stoughton 


207 S. Forrest Street 


Stoughton, WI  53589 


 


Re: Engagement Letter – Moe Family Farm Development 
 


Dear Mayor Swadley: 


 


Thank you and the City Council for choosing my firm to assist you in the above-


referenced matter.  An anonymous potential developer has expressed interest, through 


representatives at Baker Tilly, in developing property owned by Moe Family Farms LLC and 


annexing into the City of Stoughton.  The first issue with which the City must contend is the 


developer’s demand that the City sign a nondisclosure agreement.  The City seeks counsel on 


whether to enter into the nondisclosure agreement and, depending upon the outcome of that 


decision, assistance in consideration of the development proposal and counsel on the land use 


approvals, agreements, annexation and various other related processes. 


 


This letter describes the basis on which our firm will provide and bill for our legal 


services. 


 


1. Staffing.  I will have primary responsibility for your representation, 


and will be the main attorney performing the work related to this 


matter. I may, however, utilize other attorneys and legal assistants in 


the office in the best exercise of my professional judgment.   


 



mailto:tswadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us





City of Stoughton 


20 January 2022 


Page 2 


 


 


2. Fees.  We take into account many factors in billing for services 


rendered, and we will review all statements before they are issued to 


ensure that the amount charged is appropriate.  The principal factor is 


usually our schedule of hourly rates, and most statements for services 


are in substance the product of the hours worked multiplied by the 


hourly rates for the attorneys and legal assistants who did the work.  


Our schedule of hourly rates for attorneys and other members of the 


professional staff is based on years of experience, specialization in 


training and practice, and level of professional attainment. My rate for 


this matter is currently $280 per hour.  Other attorneys or 


paralegals may be asked to work on this matter at my discretion, 


however, you will not be charged for services provided by others at 


a rate higher than my own without your consent.  Currently our 


hourly rates for attorneys range from $190 - $565 (hourly rates for 


paralegals range from $80 - $245).  The schedule is subject to change 


from time to time, generally on an annual, calendar year basis. 


 


3. Costs.  Often it is necessary for us to incur expenses for items such as 


travel, lodging, meals, telephone calls, and deposition transcripts.  


Similarly, some matters require substantial amounts of costly ancillary 


services such as photocopying, computerized legal research, and staff 


overtime.  To allocate the expenses fairly and keep billing rates as low 


as possible for those matters that do not involve such expenditures, 


these items are separately itemized in our statements as "Costs and 


Disbursements."  Some "Costs and Disbursements" represent out-of-


pocket costs, some represent an allocation of overhead costs associated 


with the items, and others represent a combination of both factors.  In 


some circumstances, particularly with regard to substantial items, we 


either ask our clients to pay costs directly or fund them in advance. 


 


4. Billings.  Our policy is to bill each client monthly for all services 


performed and costs incurred in the previous month for every matter on 


which we have worked.  Since there are sometimes delays in the 


accrual of costs incurred, some costs may be included in a subsequent 


bill.  We expect payment promptly after receipt of a bill. 


 


5. Advanced Fees and Costs.  Advanced Fees and Costs may be 


requested at any time depending upon the nature and amount of work 


that may need to be performed.  Upon receipt, the Advanced Fees and 


Costs will be deposited into a trust account maintained by the Firm 


with interest thereon being paid to the Wisconsin Trust Account 







City of Stoughton 


20 January 2022 


Page 3 


 


 


Foundation as required by Wisconsin Law.  We will withdraw payment 


for costs invoiced and fees that have been earned from the funds held in 


trust at the time an itemized invoice containing the amount owed is 


transmitted to you.   


 


We reserve the right to discontinue work in the absence of a requested 


advanced fee and cost payment.  Further, advanced fees and costs may 


be required, upon notice, to be replenished where value of remaining 


work expected to be required exceeds the current balance.   


 


 At this time, no advanced fees are requested. 


 


6. Termination.  You have the right to terminate our representation at 


any time.  We will have the same right, consistent with our ethical 


obligations, if you fail to promptly pay us the amounts you owe us, 


refuse reasonable requests for advanced fees or replenishment of 


advanced fee balance, if you fail to disclose to us material facts, act 


contrary to our advice or if for any other reason we feel we are unable 


to continue an effective attorney-client relationship.  


 


7. Understandings.  You understand that any estimate we might give you 


for the fees and costs associated with our engagement is only an 


estimate based on very preliminary information and that the actual fees 


and costs to represent you in a given matter to conclusion will be 


determined in accordance with the provisions of this letter and may 


vary significantly from the estimate.  You also understand that, 


although we will perform our professional services on your behalf to 


the best of our ability, we cannot and have not made any guarantees 


regarding the outcome.  Any discussions we have with you or your 


representatives about the outcome of the matter are our best 


professional estimate only, and are limited by our knowledge at the 


time they are made. 


 


8. Consultations.  Personal and telephone consultations with your 


attorney(s) are part of your representation and will be billed by the 


attorney for the time spent on such consultation.  


 


9. Records Retention Policy.  It is our firm policy that files be stored in 


our storage area for ten years after the conclusion of a particular matter.  


All important original documents will be returned to you upon 


conclusion of the matter.  After ten years, the file will be destroyed.  If 







City of Stoughton 


20 January 2022 


Page 4 


 


 


you should desire a copy of the file or any part of it after the conclusion 


of the matter, it will be your responsibility to make a specific written 


request for those documents.  If no such request is made, the file will be 


destroyed after ten years in accordance with firm policy.  


 


Please sign a copy of this letter and return it to acknowledge your receipt and 


understanding.  E-mail or facsimile is acceptable. If you have any questions about this letter 


or the terms of representation, please call me.   


 


I look forward to assisting you in this matter. 


 


       Sincerely, 


 
       Matthew J. Fleming 


 


39657.223188 


 


 


ACKNOWLEDGED: 
 


City of Stoughton 
 


 


By:   


       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


Dated:    
 


 


 
 
4878-6320-8458, v. 1 







 


 


33 East Main Street 
Suite 500 
Madison, WI  53703-3095 
 


Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 2038 
Madison, WI  53701-2038 
 


Phone: 
608.257.7181 
 


Fax: 
608.257.2508 
 


www.murphydesmond.com 


 
 
 


  


 20 January 2022 


 


To Our Client: 


 


 Murphy Desmond S.C. is a service corporation, which is a special kind of corporation 


formed under Wisconsin law by firms providing professional or other services to the general 


public.  Under rules established by the Wisconsin Supreme Court, all law firms that are 


organized and operate as a limited liability entity, including as a service corporation as Murphy 


Desmond S.C. does, must provide to clients and potential clients a summary of the features of 


the service corporation law as it affects liability of providers of professional legal services. 


 


 Our law firm may be liable for the omissions, negligence, wrongful acts, misconduct 


and malpractice of the shareholders and employees of the firm who, on behalf of the firm, 


provide professional services. A shareholder or attorney employee of the firm may be liable 


for omissions, negligence, wrongful acts, misconduct and malpractice of their own doing and 


of any person acting under their actual supervision and control in that specific activity; 


however, all other shareholders and employees of the firm shall not be personally liable for 


those acts and omissions.  In addition, this Supreme Court Rule requires our law firm to register 


annually with the State Bar of Wisconsin and to carry professional liability insurance with 


certain minimum limits. Our firm carries substantially more coverage than is required for a 


firm of our size and we intend to do so in the future. 


 


 These notifications are required by the Wisconsin Supreme Court and in no way alter 


our mission as a firm or the values that form the foundation of our operating philosophy.  Both 


individually and as a firm, we intend to provide high quality legal services on a timely, 


effective and efficient basis.  If you have any questions regarding the substance of this letter, 


please do not hesitate to contact us. 


 


 Murphy Desmond S.C. 
Limited Liability Letter 


 


 
4888-1964-0330, v. 1 





		28 Stoughton Engagement Letter 1-20-22

		28a Stoughton Limited Liability Letter






 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Date//Time:       Tuesday, January 25, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19.    
               You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom:  
 https://zoom.us/j/94766925356?pwd=YThoMWtjMExTSFRGVTZWK3liV3Nldz09   
            Meeting ID: 947 6692 5356 
  Passcode: 453175 
  One tap mobile 
  +13126266799,,94766925356#,,,,*453175# US (Chicago) 
  +19292056099,,94766925356#,,,,*453175# US (New York)  
  The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum       
  Channel 981. 
 
Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch,     
              Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett           
  Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may 
only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via 
telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 
1.  Roll Call 


 
2.  Minutes and Reports 
     Plan Commission (12/13/21); Landmarks (12/9/21, 12/15/21); 
     Tree Commission (12/9/21); Public Safety Committee (10/27/21); Public Works (11/18/21)              


 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and submit it by 
6:30 p.m. on January 25, 2022. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  


 
4.  Communications and Presentations  


 
5.  Consent Agenda 
 A.  Council Minutes January 11, 2022 
 B.  R-7-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator to various applicants. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
6.  R-3-2022 Approving formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force,  
       


NEW BUSINESS 
 
7.  R-8-2022 Conditional use permit for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-138 (Formerly Pizza 
Hut).   (Plan Commission recommends approval unanimously on 1/10/22) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  
 



https://zoom.us/j/94766925356?pwd=YThoMWtjMExTSFRGVTZWK3liV3Nldz09

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 
8.  R-9-2022 Extra-territorial land division at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval unanimously on 1/10/22) 


9.  R-14-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $2,815,000 General Obligation Bonds for Street Improvement 
Projects (Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
10.  R-15-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $520,000 General Obligation Bonds for Sewerage Projects           
(Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
11.  R-16-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $360,000 General Obligation Bonds for Equipment of the Fire 
Department (Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
12.  R-17-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $400,000 General Obligation Bonds for Parks and Public               
Grounds Projects (Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
13.  R-18-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $225,000 General Obligation Bonds for River Park Project 
(Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
14.  R-19-2022 Initial Resolution Authorizing $700,000 General Obligation Bonds for Community 
Development Projects in Tax Incremental District No. 8 (Finance Committee meets January 25, 2022 – 
**TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
15.  R-20-2022 Resolution Directing Publication of Notice to Electors (Finance Committee meets January 25, 
2022 – **TIME SENSITIVE ITEM**) 
 
16. R-26-2022 Discussion and possible action regarding revisions to the City of Stoughton Contingency Fund 
Balance Policy (Finance recommended approval 7-0 on 1/11/22) 
 
17. R-22-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve  the Letter of Engagement and to 
enter into a contract with Truity Partners (formerly known as Baker Tilly Search & Staffing) for interim 
Finance Director consulting services 
 
18.  R-23-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the removal of the requirement 
to have an Alder present at all interviews. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 6-0 on January 3.) 
 
19.  R-24-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to allow the Human Resources/Risk 
Management Director the ability to update position descriptions that do not affect the grade level and reporting 
structure without additional approval. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 6-0 on January 3.) 
 
20. R-25-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the elimination of the 
requirement to verify references during the hiring process.  (Personnel Committee recommends approval 6-0 on 
January 3.) 
 
21. O-1-2022 - Repealing and Recreating Sections 10-311 through 10-319 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 
Chapter 10 - Relating to Minimum Maintenance Standards and Outdoor Storage (Recommended by Public 
Safety Committee 7-0 on 1/12/22)     FIRST READING 
 
22. O-2-2022 - Repealing and Recreating Sections 58-1 through 58-13 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 
Chapter 58 - Relating to Public Nuisances (Recommended by Public Safety Committee 7-0 on 1/12/22)  
         FIRST READING 
 







23.  O-3-2022 Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (88) 
relating to No Parking Anytime on both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 
(Recommended by the Public Safety Committee 6-0 on 1/12/22) 
         FIRST READING  
24. R-10-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Amend Section 70-176 to 
Designate Oak Opening Drive as a Through Street (Public Safety Committee recommend 6-0 on 1/12/22) 
 
 25. R-11-2022 Acceptance of Public Improvements – Nordic Ridge Phase IV (Public Works recommends 4-0 
on 1/20/22) 
 
26. R-12-2022 Acceptance of Public Improvements made by Kettle Park West, LLC for Kettle Park West – The 
Meadows Addition Phase I (Public Works recommends 4-0 on 1/20/22) 


27. R-13-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Harvest 
Farms, LLC for Construction of Phase 5 & 6 of the Nordic Ridge Plat (Finance recommends approval 7-0 on 
1/11/22 & Public Works recommends 4-0 on 1/20/22) 
 
28.  Authorize City officials to enter into an agreement with Matthew Fleming for the Delta project. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. 
For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.          By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council 
President Regina Hirsch 


  
 
 


Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 947 6692 5356 
Passcode: 453175 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aBRE1V5G7 
 



https://zoom.us/u/aBRE1V5G7






\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, December 13, 2021 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; 
Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Majewski; and Tom Robinson 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Rob Hostrawser; Curt Brink; Matt Brink; Ryan Genin; Doug Hursch; Brett Johnson; 
Rebecca de Boer; Terrance McMillan; and John Thousand  
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of November 8, 2021.   


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.   Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated R-170-21 was approved on November 23, 2021 for Luca’s Pizza CUP. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
Scheel gave an overview of the current developments as outlines in the packet.   


 
Schumacher questioned if any new business has yet to seek out the old Pizza Hut property.  
Stacey stated there is a public hearing for a Group Daycare set for January. 
 
Majewski arrived at 6:03pm 
 


5. Façade improvements at 143 E. Main Street.  (Tabled from November 8, 2021) 
Scheel explained the Tabled request. 


 
Barman likes the existing blue around the door but does not like the salmon color of the 
lower façade. 
 
Robinson and Caravello agree with Barman. 
 
Schumacher stated he originally did not like the blue and purple colors of the door area 
because of how dark the colors are. 
 
Farrow explained his experience with the Navy is that they had specific colors that could be 
used. 
 
There was a discussion about code requirements for façade color. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/13/21 
Page 2 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21.docx 


 


Motion by Barman to approve the existing blue around the door and the purple door but the 
façade colors should be limited to 3 colors as required by code, 2nd by Caravello.   
 
Barman suggested the salmon color could be changed to the cream color similar to the upper 
façade. 
 
Caravello suggested leaving the proposed light gray around the door and replace the salmon 
color with that color.  Barman agreed that may work. 
 
The Commission discussed options to meet the required 3 colors for the façade. 
 
Motion by Majewski to postpone the agenda item to allow the applicant to provide an 
updated proposal that will meet code, 2nd by Robinson.   
 
Barman requested staff share the discussion info with the applicant. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


6. Planned Development - General Development Plan (PD-GDP) Rezoning for the 
Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment project area. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Doug Hursch gave a presentation of the project. 
 
Rebecca de Boer gave an overview of the landscaping plan including terrace trees. 
 
Majewski expressed concern over the potential types of trees for the terrace and would like to 
see a wider terrace if possible.  Majewski is not in favor of crabapple trees in the terrace. 
 
Rebecca de Boer stated they are working with the City Forester on a plan for the terrace trees 
which will either be planted by the developer or there will be a fee of $300 per tree for the 
City to plant the trees. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated the GDP stage allows these types of issues to be worked out before 
final approval. 
 
Curt Brink stated there is limited room to widen the terrace near the Power Plant but there 
may be an opportunity farther to the east along River Street. 
 
Rebecca de Boer stated the area along River Street past the Power Plant is part of a different 
project that is being bid out. 
 
Barman stated the renderings show taller terrace trees. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/13/21 
Page 3 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21.docx 


 


Caravello questioned the trash enclosure location with the consensus being that it is located 
in the best spot to keep it hidden from the public. 
 
Scheel explained the ordinance including the requested exceptions. 
 
Barman questioned the parking count.  Doug Hursch stated the street parking is not counted 
in the provided onsite parking number. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
The following registered in favor of the rezoning: 
 
Doug Hursch  
Rebecca de Boer  
Curt Brink  
Matt Brink 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the PD-GDP ordinance for 
the area known as Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment as presented, 2nd by Majewski.  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


7. Certified Survey Map (CSM) to reconfigure the properties associated with the 
Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment project. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
John Thousand, Surveyor, explained some lots can be split in the future if necessary. 
 
Motion by Majewski to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM resolution as 
presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 


8. Signage change at 135 W. Main Street, Suite 100. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Motion by Barman to approve the signage resolution as presented, 2nd by Caravello.    
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


9. Parker Cole Additional Final Plat – Extension of Isham Street to the West. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request and resolution. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the Final Plat 
resolution as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/13/21 
Page 4 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21.docx 


 


10. Site plan for an accessory building to house lab gas bottle distribution and storage at 
Cummins CES, 1801 US Highway 51-138. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Ryan Genin of Cummins explained how the building would be used with built in safety 
features for each of the 3 rooms.  Ryan stated there will be 28 different gases that will be run 
into the main building. 
 
Ryan Genin provided the type of gases to Schumacher for discussion. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to approve the resolution for the building as presented, 2nd by 
Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 


11. Site plan for a new building access at Sinobec Resources, 1600 Williams Drive. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request and resolution.  Scheel noted there are no current 
plans for future building expansion or sale of excess acreage. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the site plan resolution as presented, 2nd by Farrow.  
 
Mayor Swadley stated it is good to get some closure on the extra site plan items that remain 
unfinished from the original site plan approval. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


12. Discuss residential density for planned developments. 
Scheel explained the reasoning for the discussion item including the discussion he had with 
the Police Chief, Fire Chief and EMS Director about the effects of density. 
 
The group discussed how to address residential density going forward. 
 
Scheel stated the Comprehensive Plan could be amended to address density.  Mayor Swadley 
stated that a Comprehensive Plan amendment would have to be budgeted. 
 


13. Discuss review of building façade and signage colors for the Downtown Design Overlay 
Zoning District (DDOZD). 
Scheel stated we need to understand the role the Plan Commission wants to take in reviewing 
façade colors in the DDOZD. 


 
Majewski stated it is very subjective to review colors. 
 
Barman stated it is much more difficult when the project has been completed prior to 
approval.  Schumacher agrees. 
 
Scheel stated we tried to include the property owners during the ordinance rewrite. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/13/21 
Page 5 of 5 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21.docx 


 


Barman stated there should be some type of welcoming committee for a new business to help 
explain the downtown requirements. 
 
Scheel stated in many cases we do not hear of a new business until it is too late. 
 


14. Discuss gaining input from Police, Fire and EMS regarding impacts of new 
development. 
Scheel and Mayor Swadley touched on this topic earlier.  The intent is to gain input for 
projects other than market rate. 
 


15. Discuss restaurant drive-thru issues. 
Mayor Swadley explained the restaurant drive-thru issues we’ve seen due to Covid. 


 
Scheel explained how Culver’s appears to be changing their business model geared toward 
drive-thru at a new building in Oregon.  The City Attorney is working to potentially draft an 
ordinance amendment. 
 
Mayor Swadley stated the recent approval for the new Starbuck’s location appears to be 
working out fine but he does have concerns about KFC/Taco Bell once Nygaard Street is 
extended. 
 
Barman stated some problems may be internal staffing or management. 
 


16. Future agenda items.  2525 Jackson Street; Williams Drive ETJ and Group Daycare CUP. 
 
17. Adjournment. 


Motion by Robinson to adjourn at 8:27 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\02 Landmarks Minutes 120921.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday December 9, 2021 – 6:30 pm 
Virtual 
 
Members Present:  Todd Hubing, Chair; Greg Pigarelli, Vice-Chair; Peggy Veregin; Jean Ligocki, 
Secretary; Kimberly Cook; Kristi Panthofer and Alan Hedstrom 
Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Absent: None 
Guests: None 
 
1. Call to order.  Hubing called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of November 11, 2021.  


Veregin provided an amendment. 
  
Motion by Ligocki to approve the minutes as amended, 2nd by Veregin.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Discuss Potential New Member(s). 
Hubing explained the confusion about the new member appointed by the Mayor and approved 
by Council without necessarily a need yet for the Commission.  That has been resolved by the 
Mayor.  Hubing stated the Commission is still seeking a new member with certain 
qualifications. 
 
The Commission discussed a potential ordinance amendment.  Ligocki offered to draft an 
amendment that addresses the need for Commission approval of any new members prior to 
Council approval. 
 


4. Main Street Historic District Design Guidelines. 
• Discuss proposed draft table of contents. 


 
Hedstrom questioned if signage will be addressed in the design guidelines. 
 
Stacey will send questions/comments to Erica Ruggiero. 
 
Veregin stated there is a need to address screening of parking lots and provide requirements for 
the placement of electrical vehicle charging stations. 
 
Veregin stated on Page 2, Materials:  120 E. Main Street façade is not metal as stated. 
 
Hedstrom did not specifically see windows listed in the table of contents. 
 
Veregin stated some styles listed are not found in the district but will wait to discuss until the 
initial draft comes out. 
 
Ligocki questioned the meaning of the term massing.  Veregin stated massing is a term that 
refers to the general shape and size of a building. 
 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/9/21 
Page 2 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\02 Landmarks Minutes 120921.docx  


Veregin questioned the sentence meaning in VIII A.  Stacey will add it to the questions to Erica. 
 


• Discuss marketing of design guidelines. 
 
Hubing stated there was a recommendation from Erica Ruggiero and the Commission is 
interested in gaining community involvement. 
 
Ligocki suggested putting information on the Landmark website, Landmarks Facebook page, 
Stoughton Hub and at the Stoughton Public Library. 
 
Veregin suggested describing the process, grant funding acquired and information about the 
project. 
 
Panthofer stated it will be important to keep the information consistent to avoid confusion. 
 
Veregin will put together a short summary for publication. 


 
5. Downtown Local District.   


Nothing new to report. 
 


6. Depot Hill Historic District. 
Veregin stated the Depot Hill Historic District has been entered in the National and State 
Register of Historic Places on November 22, 2021 and notices have been sent to inform all 
property owners within the district. 
 
Veregin stated street sign toppers should be added if possible to identify the district.  Stacey to 
check with Public Works about the signs. 
 
Veregin stated the district should be added to the Landmark website and Facebook. 
 
Hedstrom suggested a Hub article about the district.  Ligocki has a contact at the Hub.  Ligocki 
is also going to contact the Mayor about making an announcement at the next Council meeting.  
Stacey stated information has been provided to the Mayor for the Council meeting. 
 
Stacey questioned if the Depot Hill Historic District Map would be updated.  Veregin stated the 
State Historic Preservation Office simply lifted the old objection to get the district listed as 
originally presented. 
 
Veregin stated the State Historic Preservation Office will typically send out a press release for a 
new historic district. 
 


7. Discuss providing plaques to Local Landmark properties. 
Veregin requested prices from 4 different fabricators and heard back from 3 of them.  Two of 
the firms provided prices to fabricate a cast aluminum plaque similar to what we have.  One 
firm came in at $200 plus s/h and the other was $230 plus s/h.  Both have an 8 week production 
time.  Costs will go up about $50 next year so we should order now to save some money.  The 
budget is $1000 so we should be able to get 3 done. 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
12/9/21 
Page 3 of 3 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\02 Landmarks Minutes 120921.docx  


 
The Commission discussed who would install the plaques with the consensus being to let the 
property owner install the plaque but offer assistance if needed. 
 
Hedstrom stated we’ll need to verify the property owners want the plaques before we order. 
 
Motion by Hedstrom to purchase up to 3 plaques at up to $250 each for the properties at South 
School, 1009 Summit Avenue; RR Depot, 529 E. Main Street and 118 N. Page Street, 2nd by 
Pigarelli.  Motion carried unanimously 
 


8. Commission Reports/Calendar. 
None discussed. 
 


9. Future agenda items.   
None discussed. 


 
10. Adjournment. Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn at 7:30 pm, 2nd by Panthofer.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\Minutes\03 Landmarks Minutes 121521.docx 


Landmarks Commission Special Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 – 6:30 pm 
Virtual 
 
Members Present:  Todd Hubing, Chair; Greg Pigarelli, Vice-Chair; Peggy Veregin; Jean Ligocki, 
Secretary; and Alan Hedstrom 
Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Absent: Kristi Panthofer and Kimberly Cook 
Guests: Tim Sweeney and Eric Francksen  
 
1. Call to order.  Hubing called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 


 
2. Certificate of Appropriateness for 327 E. Washington Street. 


Hubing introduced the request. 
 
Eric Francksen gave an overview of the request. 
 
Tim Sweeney explained the reasoning for the structural changes to shore up the upper balcony. 
 
Motion by Hedstrom to approve the COA as presented, 2nd by Pigarelli.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The meeting was adjourned by Hubing at 6:43 pm. 


 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday December 9, 2021 @ 5:00 PM 
Virtual Meeting -  Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Kevin Short, Mike Point, Aaron Mazzone & Kathy Engelberger 


Absent & Excused:  Fred Hundt, Jim Fitzgibbon & Dean Tangeman 


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Jen Wagner 


Guest:  


Call to order:  Engelberger called to order @ 5:00 PM  


 
• Communications:  


 
• Approval of minutes from November 11, 2021 Meeting:  Motion by Mazzone, seconded by Point to 


approve the minutes.  Carried 3-0. 
 


 
• November Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 


       
• Fall tree trimming began in November with the city’s contractor (Tree Wise Men). 180 medium 


to large trees were trimmed for a total cost of $16,676. City crews will work on small trees in 
the same neighborhoods this coming winter.  


• Tree planting was completed for the fall. 90 trees were planted in the beginning of November, 
with the majority of the trees being planted in front of new homes and businesses in 
Stoughton. Total cost for trees this fall was $25,470. 


• I began the application process for the Tree City USA status in November. This year will mark 
28 years in the TCU program for the city.  


• No residents were notified of code violations for dead/dying/dangerous trees in October. 
Complaisance from previous notifications has been mostly good thus far.  


 
 
•  OLD BUSINESS: Update on Arbor Day Art show progress:   


 
•  Engelberger put together and presented a flyer she created to help advertise & advocate for the show. 


She is hoping to make this available at the Library, with the next steps later on to put the City website 
and/or social media outlets.  


 
• Update on tree planting with the schools: 


 
•  Kemppainen stated he was in touch with the school(s) and they are open to the idea but nothing further 


has been discussed. Ultimately, we would like to try and planting one tree at every school each year. 
Trees would need to be ordered by early March and he may look into having someone from the school 
attend a future Tree Commission meeting for input.  


 
• NEW BUSINESS: Evaluate and recommend plantings suggested by Saiki Design for the Hwy 51 


Round-about Project:  
 


• Kemppainen presented the packet that was presented at the November Public Works meeting that Saiki 
Design put together. The tree commission would like to recommend native plants to be put in but would 
like to see what Saiki Design proposes at the December meeting and go from there. The city will be in 
charge of maintaining the plantings so they would like to have an input on what goes in.  







 
 
 
• Future Agenda Items: 


 
• Propose a list for planting recommendations for Hwy 51 Round-about Project 


   
 
Motion by Mazzone, seconded by Point to adjourn the meeting at 5:47 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted 12/10/21, Jen Wagner -     Staff  







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 
Virtual  


Present:  Chair, Greg Jenson, Alderpersons Ozzie Doom, Jean Ligocki, Joyce Tikalsky, 
Members; Tricia Suess Charleston, Staff; Mayor Swadley, and Police Chief Greg Leck.  


Excused: none 


Guests:  Teressa Pellett. 


Call to Order:  Chair Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:24 p.m.   


Old Business:  


Pellett said that a draft Resolution is prepared but is not in the packet for discussion.  Mayor 
Swadley presented the draft and members and will email them to PSC members.   


Tabled to next meeting.  


Communications:  Chief Leck gave a brief update regarding that the new Speed Board still 
has not arrived.  Updated the committee on Monday’s High School lockdown incident.  


New Business 


4. Minutes of 9-23-21:  Moved by Doom 2nd by: Basco, to approve the minutes of 
9-23-21.                                   Motion carried: 5-0  


5. Discussion and possible action of a change of agent for the Stoughton 
Kroger/Roundy’s Supermarket. 


Leck presented the request for change of agent for the Stoughton 
Krogers/Roundy’s.   


Motion by Tikalsky, 2nd By Doom to recommend approval to the council 
contingent on the application be notarized.  Motion carried 5-0 


6. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (50) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Ridge Street 


Motion by Doom, 2nd by Tikalsky to recommend approval to council.  Motion 
carried 5-0 


7. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (84) regarding No Parking on 
portions of Ridge Street. 


Motion by Tikalsky: recommend to Council, 2nd by Doom.  Motion carried 5-0 


8. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (85) regarding No 
Parking on portions of N. Madison Street. 


Motion by: Doom 2nd by Basco to recommend to Council. Motion carried 5-0 
 
 







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 28, 2011 
Page 2 
 


9. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (86) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Hill Street. 


Motion by Tikalsky, 2nd by Basco to recommend approval to Council 


Motion carried 5-0 


10.  Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (87) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Hill Street. 


Motion by: Doom, 2nd by: Tikalsky to recommend approval to Council 


Motion carried 5-0 


11.  Discussion of Bullying/Harassment Ordinance Sec. 50-15 


Discussion on how to inform public of this ordinance. Jenson stated that people are 
just not aware of ordinance.  Tikalsky stated that she has also heard that there were 
incidents that she was aware of, especially regarding fears of retaliation.  Chief Leck 
advised that the ordinance has not been used since it was adopted and that it would 
be a good idea to put it on the website or publicize it more.  


Leck stated that he will work getting the Bullying Ordinance up on the website so 
that people are aware of it.  Maybe through that messaging it will help people know 
that they is a City Ordinance.  Jenson added that we can circle back to this next 
month and check the progress.   


12.  Discussion and possible action on transfer of Pizza Hut Class B license to new 
location. 
 
Leck explained that Pizza Hut is moving to their new location on 11-1-21 and that this 
transfer of premises needs to be approved to change the license location.  Leck 
added that City Clerk Christen will be approving a Provisional License that will cover 
the location until the City Council can approve on 11-9-21.   


Motion by: Tikalsky, 2nd by Doom to recommend to council. 


Motion carried 5-0 
               
 
Future meetings topics; Bullying Ordinance review, Continue Liquor License process, EOC & 
Emergency Plan, Curbside pickup pilot.  


Moved by Tikalsky, 2nd By Basco to adjourn at 6:54 p.m.  Carried unanimously.   


 


Respectfully Submitted,  
Greg Leck, Chief of Police 







Public Works Committee  
Thursday, November 18th, 2021 
(Virtual Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Fred Hundt, Kathy Engelberger, Kay Rashka, 
Rachel Venegas and Mayor Swadley 


Absent/Excused: Rodney Scheel 


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert and Jennifer Wagner – Administrative Assistant 
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


• Hebert stated that leaf collection will continue through the 24th with final pick up on the 
29th. The last two weeks have been heavy but going well.  


• Hebert stated 93 trees have been planted throughout the City recently  
• Hebert stated tree trimming with Tree Wisemen started and hope to continue to work 


with them next year. 
•  


2)    Approve September 16th, 2021 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Reeves seconded by Hundt 
to approve the minutes.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
Old Business: 


    
3)    Update from the Friends of the Stoughton Prairies Task Force:  
 Engelberger informed the Committee that things have been going well and have making good 


progress on their most recent work days despite the colder weather. She is currently working on 
creating a logo for the Task Force in hopes of putting on shirts, signs and materials.  


4)   Update from Tree Commission: 
 Engelberger informed the Committee she was recently elected Chair and has already started 


planning for the future. She plans to put together an Arbor Day art show at the Library to get 
more information out to the public. All ages will be encouraged to participate and will take 
place March 21st to May 19th. She would also like to hang Arbor Day flags during this 
timeframe in the Atrium.   


 She also stated the City Forrester has reached out to the local school districts about planting 
trees at each Elementary school.  


 
New Business: 
 
5)   Saiki Design Highway 51 Roundabout Landscape Design Kickoff Presentation: 


 Hebert introduced Nik Swartz from Saiki Design who presented information on the upcoming 
Roudabouts that are scheduled to go in next year. He went over different ideas that could be 
implanted and what the DOT will approve of.  







 
6)  Yard Waste Site Presentation:  


 Hebert provided a slide show presentation of the Yard Waste Site and all the benefits it 
provides city residents for a place to take brush to the free compost they offer. 


 
7) Review and Recomment to Council the Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement located at 125 
Veterans Rd:  
 Hebert stated the new Dane Co. Sherriff’s office that is currently being remodeled on Main and          
Highway 51 installed a sidewalk but due to utility poles and wires, they were not able to install in 
the right of way. The sidewalk was installed on the county side but allows public to use space. 
 
Motion by Reeves, seconded by Hundt to recommend approval to council for December 
meeting. Motion carried 5-0 
 
 


8) Future Agenda Items:    
 
 Minimum Terrace Width for New Development 
 Minimum Landscape Maintenance Standards for Commercial Properties 
 Pedestrian Safety Features at Round-abouts 
 Tour of the Public Works Facility 
 
9) Adjourn: Motion to adjourn by Hundt, seconded by Reeves to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 
pm. Motion carried 5-0 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 





		01 Plan Com Minutes  12-13-21

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, December 13, 2021 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting



		02 Landmarks Minutes 120921

		Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes



		03 Landmarks Minutes 121521

		Landmarks Commission Special Meeting Minutes



		04 TC Min December 9, 2021

		05 PSC Minutes 10-27-21

		PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES



		06 PW Min November 18 2021






Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Date//Time:       Tuesday, January 11, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19. 


You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/92561631934?pwd=MEx5N1FmOGk0R2tZRmUwa0hkVUhJdz09 


Meeting ID: 925 6163 1934 
Passcode: 966940 
The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum 
Channel 981. 


Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, 
Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett  
Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


CALL TO ORDER 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 


Roll Call: 
Clerk Christen called roll and noted there were 11 alders present, Reeves was still signing in. 


Minutes and Reports:  The following minutes were entered into the minutes. 
     Plan Commission (11/8/21); Finance (12/14/21, 11/23/21) CACP (12/7/21, 11/2/21, 10/5/21) 


Public Comment Period:  None 


Communications and Presentations: 
Council President Hirsch expressed a sincere thank you to Finance Director Friedl, who has resigned.  
Hirsch noted Director Friedl has done such a respected job—far superior to anyone before him.  He 
made it very easy for the Council to understand items and has accomplished great things.  Schumacher 
noted Friedl had done a top notch job.  Ligocki agreed and commended cheers and congrats to Director 
Friedl in his new adventure. 


Consent Agenda: 
A. Council Minutes December 28, 2021
B. R-1-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to
various  applicants.


Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to approve the Consent agenda.  Motion carried 12-0. 


OLD BUSINESS:  none 


NEW BUSINESS 


R-2-2022 Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment 


Motion by Caravello, second by Venegas to approve R-2-2022 Approving a Certified Survey 



https://zoom.us/j/92561631934?pwd=MEx5N1FmOGk0R2tZRmUwa0hkVUhJdz09

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981





Map (CSM) for the Stoughton Riverfront Development.  Motion carried 12-0. 


R-3-2022 Approving formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force, an ad hoc committee 
of  Community Affairs Council Policy. 


Alder Ligocki presented the resolution and it will be back at Council January 25, 2022. 


R-4-2022 Resolution authorizing and directing the proper city officials to amend the 2021 and 2022 City 
of Stoughton Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Budgets and enter into an agreement with Janke General 
Contractors 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-4-2020  Resolution authorizing and directing 
the proper city official to amend the 2021 and 2022 City of Stoughton Capital Improvements (CIP) 
Budgets and enter into an agreement with Janke General Contractors.  Motion carried 12-0.  


R-5-2022 Resolution to remain a 4th Class City in the best interest of the City of Stoughton.


Motion by Heili, second by Jenson to approve R-5-2022 Resolution to remain a 4th Class City in the best 
interest of the City of Stoughton.  Motion carried 12-0. 


***R-6-2022 Discussion and possible action regarding Agreement with the Town of Rutland for 
improvements to Oak Opening Drive and Deer Point Drive within the Town. ***


*** The City Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of 
deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons deem a closed 
session necessary. The City Council may reconvene in an open session to discuss and take action on the 
subject matter discussed in the closed session*** 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.      
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


 Dial by your location 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)


Meeting ID: 925 6163 1934 
Passcode: 966940 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/ahz7gSdZq 



https://zoom.us/u/ahz7gSdZq





 
 


 


 








 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R--2022 


 
Date Introduced:   January 25, 2022 


 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Jeanne Thruman 


  Jamae Ramsden 


  Kirsten Davis 


  Deanna Gullikson    American Legion Post 59 


  Toni Killerlain     The Whatever Bar 


  Alison Relyea-Parr     


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                           


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 







 


 








 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Community Affairs/Council Policy is recommending that the City of Stoughton Common Council 
approve the formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force. 
Approving formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force, an ad hoc committee of           
Community Affairs/Council Policy.                    
  
Committee Action: 


 
CACP Committee recommended approval 6-0 


   
File Number: 


 
R-3-2022 


 
Date Introduced:   January 25, 2022 


 
Whereas, the City of Stoughton affirms its commitment to ensuring our Community is one that is open, 
inclusive and welcoming to all individuals regardless of age, gender, race, culture, sexual orientation, 
religion/spiritual practice, ability or any other significant identity. 
 
Whereas, the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Common Council approved a Special Resolution Condemning 
Racial Injustice and Hate and to Strive for Racial Equity on June 9th, 2020 
 
Whereas,  further Community Affairs/Council Policy meetings were held including Community Listening 
Sessions on Racial Equity in Fall 2020 and Summer 2021 
 
Whereas, we recognize diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) makes our Community vital and stronger; and to 
quote the wise words of Maya Angelou, Diversity makes for a rich tapestry and we must understand that all the 
threads of the tapestry are equal in value no matter what their color. 
 
Therefore,   be  it  resolved  by  the  Common  Council  of  the  City  of  Stoughton  that  the Diversity, Equity 
& Inclusion Task Force be formed with a minimum of 2  Common  Council  members, minimum 2 City Staff 
members and, given the focus on a grassroots collective, any Community members, appointed  by  the  Mayor 
with the consent of the Common Council, with a passion for DEI and commitment to social justice. 
The Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force is empowered charged with developing a Strategic Plan during 
2022-2023 including DEI events & opportunities. It is anticipated the task force with present updates to 
Community Affairs/Council Policy during 2022-2023 and then to the Stoughton Community and Committee of 
the Whole in Fall 2023. and anticipate presenting the Strategic Plan to the City and Stoughton Community in 
Fall 2023. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     



cchristen

Cross-Out



cchristen

Cross-Out



cchristen

Cross-Out



cchristen

Cross-Out







Stoughton Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force Working Document 


Overview 
 
The City of Stoughton affirms its commitment to ensuring our community is one that is open, 
inclusive, and welcoming to all individuals regardless of age, gender, race, culture, sexual 
orientation, religion/spiritual practice, abilities or any other significant known identity. In an effort 
to advance this vision and amplify the voice of diverse communities within Stoughton, the 
Community Affairs/Council Policy (CA/CP) of the Common Council is recommending the 
establishment of a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Task Force.  


The task force will work to develop strategies to help the City build stronger relationships with 
diverse communities. Through engagement and listening, the task force will identify issues and 
barriers that may limit members of our community from full participation in civic life. Acting as a 
community voice, the task force will prepare and present a DEI Strategic Plan detailing 
recommended actions the City may engage in to help ensure Stoughton is welcoming to all.  


The task force will report updates to CA/CP in 2022 and 2023. t is anticipated the task force will 
present its recommendations to the Stoughton Community and Committee of the Whole in Fall 
2023. 


Potential Timeline 


June 9, 2020 Special Resolution Condemning Racial Injustice and Hate and to Strive for Racial 
Equity 


Later 2021/Early & Mid 2021 Intermittent CA/CP Discussions 


August 2021 Community Listening Sessions on Racial Equity 


Fall 2021 CACP discussion, recommend Task Force 


January/February 2022 Announce Task Force, seek applicants 


Late Winter/Spring 2022 Appoint members, initial meeting 


12 – 15 month development of Strategic Plan with DEI events, opportunities 


2023 (Fall anticipated) Presentation of DEI Strategic Plan to Stoughton Community and Committee 
of the Whole 


 


 


 







Potential Resolution 


Community Affairs/Council Policy is recommending that the City of Stoughton Common Council 
approve the formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force. 


Whereas, the City of Stoughton affirms its commitment to ensuring our Community is one that is 
open, inclusive and welcoming to all individuals regardless of age, gender, race, culture, sexual 
orientation, religion/spiritual practice, ability or any other significant identity 


Whereas, the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin Common Council approved a Special Resolution 
Condemning Racial Injustice and Hate and to Strive for Racial Equity on June 9th, 2020 


Whereas, further Community Affairs/Council Policy meetings were held including Community 
Listening Sessions on Racial Equity in Fall 2020 and Summer 2021 


Whereas, we recognize diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) makes our Community vital and 
stronger; and to quote the wise words of Maya Angelou, Diversity makes for a rich tapestry and we 
must understand that all the threads of the tapestry are equal in value no matter what their color 


Therefore, be it resolved by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Diversity, 
Equity & Inclusion Task Force be formed with a minimum of 2 Common Council members, 
minimum 2 City Staff members and, given the focus on a grassroots collective, any Community 
members, appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the Common Council, with a passion for 
DEI and commitment to social justice. 


The Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force is empowered with developing a Strategic Plan 
during 2022-2023 including DEI events & opportunities. It is anticipated the task force with present 
updates to Community Affairs/Council Policy during 2022-2023 and then to the Stoughton 
Community and Committee of the Whole in Fall 2023. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


Potential Application 


CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
Community Affairs/Council Policy 
 
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force Application  
  
If you are interested in serving our community on the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI) Task Force, please 
complete this application form and return it by email to the City Clerk: Candee Christen 
cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us or you can land mail it to City Hall Attn: City Clerk, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 
53589. If you have additional questions, please contact City Hall at 608-873-6677 or email Candee Christen at the 
email listed above.  
 
Thank you for your interest! 
Name:  
Street Address:  
City:  State:  Zip Code:  
Phone #:  Email:  
      
 
Related Experiences and Strengths (feel free to attach your resume if you have one): 
 
 
How would you describe your current thinking about diversity, equity & inclusion 
and has your thinking changed over time? If so, please describe. 
 
 
What motivates you to be part of this working group? 
 
 
Can you commit to six to eight (virtual) meetings (utilizing a doodle poll, most 
likely weekday evenings and/or Saturday late morning lasting 60-90 minutes) in 
2022 and also six to eight (virtual) meetings in 2023?  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Potential FAQ document 


Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Task Force  


Most Frequently Asked Questions 


What is a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Task Force? 


A Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Task Force (DEI) can take on different for to ms depending on 
how it is implemented and how it is utilized. In Stoughton, the task force will begin at the 
grassroots by leading efforts to engage and listen to diverse communities within Stoughton. Task 
force members are empowered to make recommendations regarding policy, practices, and 
standards in a strategic plan to help Stoughton  result in positive change. 


Why does Stoughton need a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Task Force? 


In the resolution entitled A Special Resolution Condemning Racial Injustice and Hate and to Strive 
for Racial Equity, the Common Council emphasized a desire to see take proactive steps taken 
ensure Stoughton is open and welcoming to all individuals. A more inclusive and welcoming 
Stoughton improves everyone’s quality of life. Stoughton is stronger when everyone fully 
participates and engages in civic life. The formation of the task force isn’t the conclusion of this 
effort, but an important step toward work that remains in progress and to lead to positive systemic 
change. 


How will the members be selected? 


An application will be posted on the city’s website. Selected applicants will be appointed by the 
Mayor with consent of the City Council.  Community Affairs/Council Policy and the Mayor desire 
to recommend the appointment of individuals who will give voice to a variety of different 
perspectives and experiences. 


What is the time commitment? 


The task force will meet at least once every other month; initially monthly. It is anticipated 
meetings will take place weekday evenings or later Saturday mornings.  Members may expect to 
dedicate 2-3 hours a month outside of meetings depending on task force activities. The time 
commitment may vary as the task force progresses in its work. The Stoughton DEI Task Force is 
anticipated to complete its work in the Fall of 2023. 


Where will meetings take place? 


Meetings will likely take place virtually. Eventually, meetings may take place at the Library or City 
Hall, depending on availability of space, schedules, and COVID-19 recommendations. DEI Task 
Force activities may be conducted virtually or at alternative locations as necessary. 


 







 


What will the Task Force do? 


The task force will work in partnership with CA/CP and City Staff to coordinate outreach and 
develop recommendations to ensure Stoughton is a welcoming and inclusive community.  


Through engagement and listening, this task force will work to identify issues and any barriers that 
may prevent friends or neighbors from fully participating in civic life. To accomplish this the task 
force may compile data, conduct surveys, interview residents, gain insight from experts, and 
coordinate community focused activities. 


What does the DEI Task Force present the Community and Committee of the 
Whole? 


The task force will develop and present its findings in the form of a DEI Strategic Plan to 
Community Affairs/Council Policy and then to the Stoughton Community and Committee of the 
Whole, including key themes identified in its engagement and recommendations related to relevant 
policies and practices. As a starting point, the task force will focus on actions that: 


• Ensure Stoughton is open and welcoming to all 


• Help build new and stronger relationships with diverse communities 


• Facilitate a greater understanding of relevant issues, barriers, disparities, and recognition of how 
diversity strengthens our community 


• Identify barriers and address challenges to a more diverse workforce and representation across the 
breadth of elected officials, boards, and committees. CA/CP anticipates that task force members 
will have the opportunity to remain involved and assist with implementation and ongoing work 
related to diversity, equity, and inclusion in Stoughton beyond 2023. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Resources 


Strategic Plans 
https://plandev.countyofdane.com/documents/RGEI/RGEI-Final-Plan-03.05.20.pdf   Dane County 
https://www.happyvalleyor.gov/diversity-equity-and-inclusion-committee/  Happy Valley Oregon  pop. 20,000 
https://www.ci.northfield.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/9661/Northfield-Racial-Equity-Action-Plan?bidId=  Northfield, 
MN  pop. 20,000 
  
Events/Webpage 
https://equity.countyofdane.com/Cultural-Events  Dane County Cultural Updates and Events 
  
https://www.ci.cedarburg.wi.us/diversity-equity-and-inclusion-task-force   Cedarburg   pop. 12,000 
https://www.geneva.il.us/1392/Diversity-Equity-Inclusion-Task-Force  Geneva, IL  pop. 22,000 
  
https://www.vi.cottagegrove.wi.gov/610/Ad-Hoc-Diversity-Equity-and-Inclusion-Co  Cottage Grove 
https://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/programs/racial-equity-social-justice-initiative  Madison 
https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/611/Equity  Middleton 
https://www.mymonona.com/1510/Diversity-Equity-and-Inclusion-Efforts  Monona 
Mount Horeb 
Oregon 
https://cityofsunprairie.com/929/Diversity-and-Inclusion   Sun Prairie 
Verona 
https://www.vil.waunakee.wi.us/918/Diversity-Equity-Inclusion  Waunakee 
  
https://equity.countyofdane.com/  Dane County 
  
  
Other Resources 
https://wisconsin.planning.org/knowledge-center/equity-and-inclusive-planning/  
https://www.wicounties.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/Governing-For-Equity-Implementing-an-Equity-Lens-in-
Local-Government.pdf 
https://www.racialequityalliance.org/tools-resources/ 
https://mrsc.org/Home/Explore-Topics/Governance/Citizen-Participation-and-Engagement/DEI-Resources-for-Local-
Government.aspx 
  
https://www.ci.northfield.mn.us/1372/Diversity-Equity-and-Inclusion  Northfield, MN 
https://wwhttps://www.platteville.org/bc/page/task-force-inclusion-diversity-and-equity-tide    Platteville 
w.wauwatosa.net/government/open-government/making-wauwatosa-more-inclusive   Wauwatosa 
  
Images 
https://www.mranet.org/sites/default/files/image/2019-11/bigstock%20-%20diversity.jpg 
https://shrm-
res.cloudinary.com/image/upload/c_crop,h_718,w_1277,x_0,y_0/w_auto:100,w_1200,q_35,f_auto/v1/Competencies/i
Stock-1290118946_zyjexv.jpg 
https://encrypted-
tbn0.gstatic.com/images?q=tbn:ANd9GcQjaLeH5403c4CH4yyxh71apZx5acseWXNxECS82msBuwBME5YDzA-
734bOOY4Qk7PamTU&usqp=CAU 
https://encrypted-
tbn0.gstatic.com/images?q=tbn:ANd9GcToz6dtVO9EwxbtZ9GEUi8yhxNG1UZhBt3yQG27ilZe4HzShnkfcB-
2o44TnHRz9Uq7CuE&usqp=CAU 
https://encrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com/images?q=tbn:ANd9GcQYPUb9UT8U_sCto9i0FhUOpoXklD8y9A-
tZQKF0fGgVxyR8GQvL0s46UuSvsytn-9KL8Q&usqp=CAU 
  



https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fplandev.countyofdane.com%2Fdocuments%2FRGEI%2FRGEI-Final-Plan-03.05.20.pdf&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=e%2BBsolcMuZ7vLNMRxAJPYMxJal%2FVlh1YbuN1WBmKCfc%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.happyvalleyor.gov%2Fdiversity-equity-and-inclusion-committee%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=roLWWLLIg%2BP2%2F58bS%2B2Q59fJ1ZKQQuuEOfhCWWqsic8%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ci.northfield.mn.us%2FDocumentCenter%2FView%2F9661%2FNorthfield-Racial-Equity-Action-Plan%3FbidId%3D&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=i0SfxvX1TJQN0B0YSQ3j60cl5w%2BSx%2FWAzYoYC%2F3XYy4%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fequity.countyofdane.com%2FCultural-Events&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=VjV%2FHDarPdN9swwV%2FiCZLDc5jLJOc7rG%2FRfU31NU5WU%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ci.cedarburg.wi.us%2Fdiversity-equity-and-inclusion-task-force&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=UW59lAq0WPh5NC76Vx5Z5X63SvfRRH3jDScD2PY6oyE%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.geneva.il.us%2F1392%2FDiversity-Equity-Inclusion-Task-Force&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=CWvSmy9F77zCSiHVcAfpFVPZpvOw8YIP6eLNx5phodU%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.vi.cottagegrove.wi.gov%2F610%2FAd-Hoc-Diversity-Equity-and-Inclusion-Co&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=RhBgKJHFPGYjy4lvNs5%2Fsoy1YXgtvmb4qfsxbGP97T8%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cityofmadison.com%2Fcivil-rights%2Fprograms%2Fracial-equity-social-justice-initiative&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ZTF7uAwkpVJybRntnkojsB9gjcxd%2FAPRVzbr9ABUgIM%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cityofmiddleton.us%2F611%2FEquity&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=Rn6gOpPEIJsOT4YVz74Sw5AtYlMwIwLr8fMfvC8SwVI%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mymonona.com%2F1510%2FDiversity-Equity-and-Inclusion-Efforts&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=FGpfzLEIORsZRhlmtOGZj8MmRT6xTr5JoRJ5KF0Gvfg%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcityofsunprairie.com%2F929%2FDiversity-and-Inclusion&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=BC%2BAj%2BFTviDUWFa%2FT1Rlw%2Beh6c4TQWZM3xQhuvysdFg%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.vil.waunakee.wi.us%2F918%2FDiversity-Equity-Inclusion&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=liP5yq%2FpYyyHekIm9q7cwQdgYM7LetvzeSqufeFmk0U%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fequity.countyofdane.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=a0%2FsUNRsBK3RWrrQCHmgY9h9a%2BPtKeM8sn%2B3zwXDQr8%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwisconsin.planning.org%2Fknowledge-center%2Fequity-and-inclusive-planning%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=gT%2Bm%2BwwUWs9Kbp64vrMyZEWXsGYogMgv8BogCAkzXfI%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wicounties.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F02%2FGoverning-For-Equity-Implementing-an-Equity-Lens-in-Local-Government.pdf&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=5oggmRF%2BHv7oLFWAGkjDFCobQRogXX9TNkeREouLdTQ%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wicounties.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F02%2FGoverning-For-Equity-Implementing-an-Equity-Lens-in-Local-Government.pdf&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=5oggmRF%2BHv7oLFWAGkjDFCobQRogXX9TNkeREouLdTQ%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.racialequityalliance.org%2Ftools-resources%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=o4Cw%2FWdy%2F5trgR98DPXFDbTNyCkwQXcDJko8lkHHjcI%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmrsc.org%2FHome%2FExplore-Topics%2FGovernance%2FCitizen-Participation-and-Engagement%2FDEI-Resources-for-Local-Government.aspx&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=n1d4THQC%2FS6yxooXQn9uekKUFzn6qoeLR2h8BQ3d2lE%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmrsc.org%2FHome%2FExplore-Topics%2FGovernance%2FCitizen-Participation-and-Engagement%2FDEI-Resources-for-Local-Government.aspx&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=n1d4THQC%2FS6yxooXQn9uekKUFzn6qoeLR2h8BQ3d2lE%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ci.northfield.mn.us%2F1372%2FDiversity-Equity-and-Inclusion&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=PJx0bTMqs7Yo%2BPLKJfHEP2YZHEVFBmncooN1Kjuv8I4%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.platteville.org%2Fbc%2Fpage%2Ftask-force-inclusion-diversity-and-equity-tide&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=IbgFemfDZ6pMUB0d8shuQuqBdl2L0XeeG0kx0R1DL1Y%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mranet.org%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fimage%2F2019-11%2Fbigstock%2520-%2520diversity.jpg&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=XQVuUiqhUh4jyOWRu62FCKjzlIoYM3IycalGHlXs6qE%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fshrm-res.cloudinary.com%2Fimage%2Fupload%2Fc_crop%2Ch_718%2Cw_1277%2Cx_0%2Cy_0%2Fw_auto%3A100%2Cw_1200%2Cq_35%2Cf_auto%2Fv1%2FCompetencies%2FiStock-1290118946_zyjexv.jpg&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=Ur5epIvsfRuTDmsy0F7IP9Bdgfy75QLiC23khQq2%2Bzo%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fshrm-res.cloudinary.com%2Fimage%2Fupload%2Fc_crop%2Ch_718%2Cw_1277%2Cx_0%2Cy_0%2Fw_auto%3A100%2Cw_1200%2Cq_35%2Cf_auto%2Fv1%2FCompetencies%2FiStock-1290118946_zyjexv.jpg&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=Ur5epIvsfRuTDmsy0F7IP9Bdgfy75QLiC23khQq2%2Bzo%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fshrm-res.cloudinary.com%2Fimage%2Fupload%2Fc_crop%2Ch_718%2Cw_1277%2Cx_0%2Cy_0%2Fw_auto%3A100%2Cw_1200%2Cq_35%2Cf_auto%2Fv1%2FCompetencies%2FiStock-1290118946_zyjexv.jpg&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=Ur5epIvsfRuTDmsy0F7IP9Bdgfy75QLiC23khQq2%2Bzo%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcQjaLeH5403c4CH4yyxh71apZx5acseWXNxECS82msBuwBME5YDzA-734bOOY4Qk7PamTU%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=GjymyY3dk27AIqD6Me%2F%2FFCg4WVzV8qXjUwUzPdgCJdU%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcQjaLeH5403c4CH4yyxh71apZx5acseWXNxECS82msBuwBME5YDzA-734bOOY4Qk7PamTU%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=GjymyY3dk27AIqD6Me%2F%2FFCg4WVzV8qXjUwUzPdgCJdU%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcQjaLeH5403c4CH4yyxh71apZx5acseWXNxECS82msBuwBME5YDzA-734bOOY4Qk7PamTU%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920052959891%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=GjymyY3dk27AIqD6Me%2F%2FFCg4WVzV8qXjUwUzPdgCJdU%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcToz6dtVO9EwxbtZ9GEUi8yhxNG1UZhBt3yQG27ilZe4HzShnkfcB-2o44TnHRz9Uq7CuE%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920053116131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uasZDMlHtkEvDgkYyVPIOZwYeNBStheM0RXrT8DbeK0%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcToz6dtVO9EwxbtZ9GEUi8yhxNG1UZhBt3yQG27ilZe4HzShnkfcB-2o44TnHRz9Uq7CuE%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920053116131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uasZDMlHtkEvDgkYyVPIOZwYeNBStheM0RXrT8DbeK0%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcToz6dtVO9EwxbtZ9GEUi8yhxNG1UZhBt3yQG27ilZe4HzShnkfcB-2o44TnHRz9Uq7CuE%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920053116131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uasZDMlHtkEvDgkYyVPIOZwYeNBStheM0RXrT8DbeK0%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcQYPUb9UT8U_sCto9i0FhUOpoXklD8y9A-tZQKF0fGgVxyR8GQvL0s46UuSvsytn-9KL8Q%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920053116131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uJHWptbnKj6DFo3SZHkNlbSC3zGcQHQ4AMILj1x1ntI%3D&reserved=0

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fencrypted-tbn0.gstatic.com%2Fimages%3Fq%3Dtbn%3AANd9GcQYPUb9UT8U_sCto9i0FhUOpoXklD8y9A-tZQKF0fGgVxyR8GQvL0s46UuSvsytn-9KL8Q%26usqp%3DCAU&data=04%7C01%7C%7C70367dc547b049b3ad5008d9d22ea54e%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637771920053116131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uJHWptbnKj6DFo3SZHkNlbSC3zGcQHQ4AMILj1x1ntI%3D&reserved=0





 


 





		06 R-3-2022 Approving formation of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Task Force, an ad hoc committee of           Community AffairsCouncil Policy.

		06 StoDEI Task Force Working Document






\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\06 R-8-2022 Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for a Group Daycare at 1424 US 
Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin..docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-138, 
Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends approval 7 - 0 


Fiscal Impact: None. 
 


File Number: R-8-2022 Date Introduced:        January 25, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on January 10, 2022 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-
138, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan; 


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of- 
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development; 


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\January 25, 2022\06 R-8-2022 Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for a Group Daycare at 1424 US 
Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin..docx 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 
a Group Daycare use at 1424 US Highway 51-138 is hereby approved as presented. 
 


 
 


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote    


 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


 
 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 
 


 
Council Action:  Override Vote    


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\011022\PC Info\1424 US Hwy 51-138 CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the January 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and January 25, 


2022 Common Council Meeting 
 
Conditional use permit (CUP) for a group daycare use at 1424 US Highway 51-138. 
This request is to approve a conditional use permit for a group daycare use at the former Pizza Hut 
property, 1424 US Highway 51-138.  The Comprehensive Plan depicts this property as Planned 
Business which is consistent with the daycare use and zoning.  Notices have been sent to all 
property owners within 300 feet of the subject property at least 10 days prior to the hearing.  A 
public hearing and recommendation to the Common Council is necessary.  The resolution, staff 
review and application materials are provided.  
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Intended Use of the Property 


12/9/2021 


Jeffrey Boness 
Aurora Borealis Properties 


We are purchasing the property and the existing building on 1424 US Hwy 
51, Stoughton, WI 53589 with the intent of opening a childcare center that 
focuses on children under the age of 6 year old. We are keeping the 
existing building and the changes will only affect the inside layout. Our 
business hours will be from 6 am to 6pm. We will offer full and part week 
care. 


A chain link fence, with privacy slats, that is 6 foot high will be erected in 
part of the parking lot to act as a playground. 


The current parking lot, not counting the spots that we are using for the 
playground, has 48 spots. Our license will be for up to 60 children. The 
most staff we will have on during the heaviest part of the day is 15. To 
meet the bicycle reql!irement, a bike rack with no less than an 8 bike 
capacity will be purchased and placed by the playground. 


Sincerely, 


-Jeffrey Boness
Aurora Borealis Properties























L;:infogram 


fenced area to take up back 6 


parking spots over 


Exisiting Building 


() Untitled map 


� Share Create your own 


Made wtth 4'mH@mi 


Report 











Ben
Waite Cir


Kenilworth Ct


£¤51


£¤51
£¤51


Daycare


ZONING MAP SECTION



























CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


December 10, 2021 


Jeffrey and Stephanie Boness 
906 Hamilton Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 


Dear Applicant: 


I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use and site plan for a group daycare use at 
1424 US Highway 51-138, Stoughton – application provided 12/6/2021.  As noted, additional 
information may be required or shown on the plans.  


1. The property at 1424 US Highway 51-138 is currently zoned PB – Planned Business.  A Group
Daycare Center is allowed as conditional uses within the PB district.  A public hearing is
planned for the January 10, 2022 Plan Commission meeting.  It is anticipated that the
Common Council will act on the CUP request at their January 25, 2022 meeting.


2. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning Administrator
may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the request is in
harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan:


a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in
harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the purposes,
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive plan,
this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration
pursuant to official notice by the city?
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue adverse
impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors,
traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city or other
governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development?  We do not see any
substantial or major adverse impacts related to the group daycare use.



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property?
The use is consistent with the Planned Business zoning classification.


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, and
will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use should not
impose a burden on utilities or services.


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in subsections
1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's proposal and any
requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts? No adverse
impacts have been identified.


3. The Comprehensive Plan, future land use map designates the property at 1424 US Highway 51-
138 as Planned Business.  The zoning and proposed use appear to be consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan.


4. Relevant site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 are
as follows:


A. Written description of the intended use.  Provided
B. Property site drawing. Plan of existing site provided


5. Regulations applicable to a group daycare are as follows:
• Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .50 along all property


borders abutting residentially zoned property (See zoning section 78-610).
N/A


6. The parking requirement for a group daycare is one space per five students, plus one space for
each employee on the largest work shift.  There is ample parking to meet this requirement.


7. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather surface
and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly marked to
indicate required spaces.  Expected


8. Accessible parking spaces must be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations.  Expected


9. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet.  Expected


10. The parking aisle width shall be a minimum of 24 feet.  Expected


11. The access drive shall be a minimum of 18 feet in width and the curb opening for an access
drive shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-residential uses, as measured at the right-
of-way line.  Access drives may be flared between the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a
maximum of five additional feet and may be exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval.
The access is existing.







12. Per section 78-704 (13)(a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile parking
space requirement.  There are specific requirements related to bicycle parking in section 78-704
(13).  8 bike spaces will be provided.


13. A gated, screened, trash enclosure is required for the handling of waste.  Existing enclosure


14. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage.  Expected


15. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan, application and fee prior to installation.
Expected


16. A fence permit will be necessary prior to installation.  Expected


17. State of Wisconsin approved building plans may be necessary for the interior work prior to
issuance of a building permit but is not necessary to begin the City review process.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


Sincerely, 
City of Stoughton 


Michael P. Stacey 


Michael P. Stacey 
Zoning Administrator


s:\planning\property log folder\1424 us highway 51\group daycare 2021\group daycare cup - site plan 2021.doc 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 10, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Todd Barman; 
Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Majewski; and Tom Robinson 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests:  
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of December 13, 2021.  


Caravello stated a correction is needed at #3 Council representative report, it should state 
Luca’s Pizza not Luigi’s Pizza. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as corrected, 2nd by Caravello.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Caravello stated Ordinance 29 of 2021 was approved. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.  Scheel gave an overview of the status of 
developments.  There were no questions. 
 


5. Façade improvements at 143 E. Main Street.  (Postponed from December 13, 2021) 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Robinson stated he went by the building and has no problem with the exterior colors. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the façade improvements as presented, 2nd by Farrow. 
 
Schumacher stated he is also ok with the existing colors. 
 
Barman stated the code only allows 3 different colors and it was previously brought up that 
the dark blue around the door was too dark. 
 
Majewski stated the only issue is there are 4 different colors. 
 
Motion carried 6-1 (Barman is opposed) 
 


6. Conditional use permit for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-138 (Formerly 
Pizza Hut). 
Scheel gave an overview of the request.   



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
01/10/22 
Page 2 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


 


Barman stated this review appears to be just for the change of use not for the site plan and 
there may be a need for more playground area.  Mayor Swadley questioned if there are any 
requirements for the playground area.  Scheel stated there is no zoning requirement for the 
size of playground rather there may be State requirements for the daycare use. 
 
Schumacher questioned if the pavement would be staying under the playground area.  Scheel 
stated he is not sure. 
 
Barman questioned if the change of use triggered any requirements such as landscaping.  
Scheel stated it is just a change of use with no site plan changes so we believe there are no 
additional site requirements. 
 
Farrow noted this area is very busy with traffic. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 


 
 Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use 
permit resolution as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 
7. Site plan review for Stoughton High School Athletic Complex Improvements at 600 


Lincoln Avenue. 
Scheel explained the request.  


 
Barman asked for a summary of the stormwater management improvements.  Scheel stated 
there is a retention pond proposed at the east end of the site and the applicant has provided a 
stormwater management and erosion control plan that are currently being reviewed by Dane 
County.   
 
Mayor Swadley explained the history of planning for these improvements and the positive 
impacts. 
 
Caravello noted there are ADA improvements listed on the plan.  Scheel stated it appears 
accessible routes are being brought into compliance. 
 
Schumacher has concerns about the grade in the northwest area of the site. 
 
Motion by Robinson to approve the High School Athletic Complex as presented, 2nd by 
Schumacher.   Motion carried unanimously. 


 
8. Site plan review for an outdoor patio area at La Cantina, 620 Nygaard Street. 


Scheel explained the request. 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight





		06 R-8-2022 Approving a Conditional Use Permit request for a Group Daycare at 1424 US Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin.

		06a 1424 US Highway 51-138 CUP

		ADPE16F.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, January 10, 2022 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 2069 Williams 
Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7 - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R -9- 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 25, 2022 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, this land division request is proposed to split a property into 3 lots for single family use at 
2069 Williams Drive in the Town of Pleasant Springs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is beyond the Planned Urban Development Area of the City of Stoughton; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 10, 2022 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the land division request and 
recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 
division request for property located at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs, is hereby approved 
as presented contingent on Town of Pleasant Springs and Dane County approval. 
 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\2069 Williams Drive ETJ Land Division.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\011022\PC Info\2069 Williams Drive CSM ETJ Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  January 3, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the January 10, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and  


January 25, 2022 Common Council Meeting. 
 


Extra-Territorial land division at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs. 
This property is within the City of Stoughton’s 1.5 mile extra-territorial jurisdiction but is beyond 
the City’s Planned Urban Development Area as identified on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land 
Use Map.  This request is to split the lot for single family residential use. 
 
Any approval should be contingent on Town of Pleasant Springs and Dane County approval.  The 
resolution, CSM and related materials are provided.  A recommendation to Council is necessary. 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/

















 
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.  City-County Bldg, Room 116  Madison, WI 53703-3342  Phone: 608.266.9106  Fax: 608.267.1540 


Dane County Planning & Development 
Land Division Review 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
Attention to whom it may concern: 
 
Re: Certified Survey Map application # 10587 
 
 
Dane County Planning & Development is in receipt of a proposed certified survey map 
application.  Attached with this letter is a copy of the survey map.   
 
Please review the proposal and comment at your earlier convenience such that the Dane County 
staff will recognize your position and concerns in acting in this matter. 
 
Reviewing Agency: 
 
• Town of Pleasant Springs 
• City of Stoughton (extraterritorial jurisdiction) 
• Dane County Surveyor – Dan Frick 
 
 
 
If you have any comments regarding this proposal please forward them to me in a timely 
manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Dan Everson 
Assistant Zoning Administrator 
608.267.1541 
 
 



















Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
01/10/22 
Page 3 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  01-10-22.docx 


 


Catalina Ortega was available to answer questions. 
 
Mayor Swadley asked if alcohol was planned for the patio area.  Catalina Ortega stated she is 
working with the City to gain approval for serving alcohol. 
 
Barman questioned the type of fence is planned.  Catalina stated it will be metal but not 
chain-link. 
 
Farrow asked if there are plans to add lighting or have music outdoors with the residential 
uses across the street.  Catalina stated there are no plans for lighting or music but possibly 
music for Cinco de Mayo. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned if a permit is required for the fence.  Scheel stated yes. 
 
Schumacher asked if the fence would have a gate for fire exiting.  Catalina stated there would 
be some type of gate. 
 
Schumacher questioned if there is ample greenspace to add the concrete patio area.  Scheel 
stated it appears there is ample greenspace to meet code. 
 
Motion by Barman to approve the outdoor dining area as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   
Motion carried unanimously. 


 
9. Extra-territorial land division at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs. 


Scheel explained the request. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the land division 
request as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


10. Awning and signage improvements at 177 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 
 
Luke Campion stated the plan is to replace the awning and add signage. 
 
Barman questioned the type of awning material.  Luke Campion stated it is a type of denim. 
 
Barman suggested making the sign bigger so customers can see it across the street.  Luke 
Campion plans to check on making the sign bigger. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to approve the awning and signage as presented, 2nd by Majewski.   
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


11. Future agenda items. 
Stone Crest development; Eighth Street Development; Teigen Farm development; Riverfront 
Redevelopment SIP; KPW Expansion; 2525 Jackson Street GDP. 



mstacey

Highlight





		07 R-9-2022 Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 2069 Williams Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County

		07a 2069 Williams Drive ETJ

		ADP73CC.tmp

		Attention to whom it may concern:

		Re: Certified Survey Map application # 10587

		Reviewing Agency:

		Dane County Planning & Development

		Land Division Review
























QB\71970631.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-14-2022 
 


INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $2,815,000 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 


 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $2,815,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of street improvement projects. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 
 





		09  Letter

		09a  R-14-2022 INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $2,815,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS






QB\71970652.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-15-2022 
 
INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $520,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 


BONDS FOR SEWERAGE PROJECTS 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $520,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of sewerage projects, consisting of storm water projects. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 
 








QB\71970673.1 
 


 


Resolution No. R-16-2022 
 
INITIAL RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING $360,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 


BONDS FOR EQUIPMENT OF THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, that there shall be issued, pursuant to Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, general 
obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $360,000 for the public purpose of paying the cost 
of equipment of the fire department. 


 
Adopted, approved and recorded January 25, 2022. 


 
 
 
_________________________ 
Timothy B. Swadley 
Mayor 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
(SEAL) 


 
 





